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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
 

 
Item 1. Financial Statements.

SAIC, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(UNAUDITED)
 

   
Three Months
Ended July 31   

Six Months
Ended July 31  

   2008  2007  2008  2007 

            
As Restated
(see Note 2) 

   (in millions, except per share amounts)  
Revenues   $2,555  $2,222  $4,924  $ 4,233 
Costs and expenses:                  

Cost of revenues    2,202   1,910   4,255   3,656 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    167   139   310   268 

Operating income    186   173   359   309 
Non-operating income (expense):                  

Interest income    6   14   14   28 
Interest expense    (21)  (23)  (40)  (45)
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries    —   (1)  —   (3)
Other income (expense), net    3   (4)  11   (4)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes    174   159   344   285 
Provision for income taxes    (70)  (60)  (136)  (111)
Income from continuing operations    104   99   208   174 
Discontinued operations (Note 1):                  

Income (loss) from discontinued operations before minority interest in income of consolidated
subsidiaries and income taxes    (2)  37   (4)  50 

Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries    —   (1)  —   (2)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes    7   (4)  8   (10)

Income from discontinued operations    5   32   4   38 
Net income   $ 109  $ 131  $ 212  $ 212 
Earnings per share:                  

Basic:                  
Income from continuing operations   $ .27  $ .24  $ .52  $ .43 
Income from discontinued operations    .01   .08   .01   .09 

   $ .28  $ .32  $ .53  $ .52 
Diluted:                  

Income from continuing operations   $ .26  $ .24  $ .51  $ .42 
Income from discontinued operations    .01   .07   .01   .09 

   $ .27  $ .31  $ .52  $ .51 
Weighted average shares outstanding:                  

Basic    392   405   397   405 
Diluted    403   418   408   418 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SAIC, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(UNAUDITED)
 

 

   
July 31,

2008  
January 31,

2008 
   (in millions)  
ASSETS          
Current assets:          

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 692  $ 1,096 
Receivables, net    1,885   1,886 
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets    296   255 

Total current assets    2,873   3,237 
Property, plant and equipment (less accumulated depreciation and amortization of $321 million and $297 million at

July 31, 2008 and January 31, 2008, respectively)    392   393 
Intangible assets, net    112   102 
Goodwill    1,247   1,077 
Deferred income taxes    68   71 
Other assets    108   101 
   $4,800  $ 4,981 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY          
Current liabilities:          

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   $1,126  $ 1,111 
Accrued payroll and employee benefits    561   562 
Income taxes payable    32   64 
Notes payable and long-term debt, current portion    21   130 

Total current liabilities    1,740   1,867 
Notes payable and long-term debt, net of current portion    1,099   1,098 
Other long-term liabilities    149   148 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)          
Stockholders’ equity:          

Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, 1.5 billion shares authorized, 213 million and 234 million shares issued and
outstanding at July 31, 2008 and January 31, 2008, respectively    —   — 

Common stock, $.0001 par value, 2 billion shares authorized, 191 million and 179 million shares issued and
outstanding at July 31, 2008 and January 31, 2008, respectively    —   — 

Additional paid-in capital    1,834   1,804 
Retained earnings    —   87 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (22)  (23)

Total stockholders’ equity    1,812   1,868 
   $4,800  $ 4,981 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
 

2



SAIC, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(UNAUDITED)

 

   Shares   
Additional

paid-in
capital 

 

Retained
earnings 

 Accumulated
other

comprehensive
loss 

 

Total 

 

Comprehensive
income   

Common
stock  

Preferred
stock      

   (in millions)
Balance at February 1, 2008   179  234  $ 1,804  $ 87  $ (23) $1,868    

Net income   —  —   —   212   —   212  $ 212
Other comprehensive income, net of tax   —  —   —   —   1   1   1
Issuances of stock   —  18   163   —   —   163   —
Repurchases of stock   (19) (8)  (221)  (299)  —   (520)  —
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock   31  (31)  —   —   —   —   —
Income tax benefit from employee stock transactions   —  —   43   —   —   43   —
Stock-based compensation   —  —   45   —   —   45   —

Balance at July 31, 2008   191  213  $ 1,834  $ —  $ (22) $1,812  $ 213

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SAIC, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)
 

 

   
Six Months Ended

July 31  
   2008  2007 

      
As Restated
(see Note 2) 

   (in millions)  
Cash flows from operations:          

Net income   $ 212  $ 212 
Income from discontinued operations    (4)  (38)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:          

Depreciation and amortization    45   35 
Stock-based compensation    45   45 
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation    (43)  (39)
Other non-cash items    (3)  12 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, excluding effects of acquisitions and divestitures, resulting

from changes in:          
Receivables    18   7 
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets    (46)  (27)
Deferred income taxes    —   6 
Other assets    (8)  (3)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    9   (80)
Accrued payroll and employee benefits    —   (17)
Income taxes payable    13   20 
Other long-term liabilities    4   (5)

Total cash flows provided by operations    242   128 
Cash flows from investing activities:          

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment    (25)  (23)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired of $3 million in 2008    (200)  — 
Payments for businesses acquired in previous years    (3)  — 
Other    12   (2)

Total cash flows used in investing activities    (216)  (25)
Cash flows from financing activities:          

Payments on notes payable and long-term debt    (110)  (9)
Sales of stock and exercise of stock options    50   55 
Repurchases of stock    (416)  (172)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation    43   39 
Other    (1)  — 

Total cash flows used in financing activities    (434)  (87)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations    (408)  16 
Cash flows of discontinued operations:          

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities of discontinued operations    9   (1)
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities of discontinued operations    (5)  3 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations    4   2 
Total increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    (404)  18 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period—continuing operations    1,096   1,109 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period—discontinued operations    —   4 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    1,096   1,113 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 692  $ 1,131 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SAIC, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation
SAIC, Inc. is a provider of scientific, engineering, systems integration and technical services and solutions to all branches of the U.S. military,
agencies of the U.S. Department of Defense, the intelligence community, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and other U.S. Governmental
civil agencies, state and local government agencies, foreign governments and customers in selected commercial markets.

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of SAIC, Inc. and all majority-owned and 100%-owned subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the Company). All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company
recognized revenues of $4 million during each of the three months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 and $9 million during each of the six months
ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 on sales to unconsolidated affiliates.

The accompanying financial information has been prepared by the Company pursuant to the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). Certain disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. These
condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included
in Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008. The preparation
of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates have been prepared by management on the basis of the most current and best available
information and actual results could differ from those estimates.

In the opinion of management, the financial information as of July 31, 2008 and for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 reflects
all adjustments, which include normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation thereof. Operating results for the three and six
months ended July 31, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2009, or any
future period.

Discontinued Operations
In July 2007, the Company completed a reorganization transaction involving AMSEC LLC. Before this transaction was completed, AMSEC LLC
was jointly owned 55% by the Company and 45% by another party, and AMSEC LLC’s results were reported as a consolidated majority-owned
subsidiary of the Company within the Government segment. The reorganization transaction resulted in the disposition of the Company’s 55%
interest in AMSEC LLC, in exchange for the acquisition by the Company of certain divisions and subsidiaries of AMSEC LLC. The Company no
longer owns any interest in AMSEC LLC. The Company applied purchase accounting to the AMSEC LLC divisions and subsidiaries that were
acquired and recorded the divested portion of the business as a sale at fair value. The parties have a mutual indemnification arrangement for pre-
transaction events.

The operating results of AMSEC LLC (other than the divisions and subsidiaries that the Company acquired in the reorganization transaction) have
been reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented. The operating results of the discontinued operations prior to sale for the
periods noted were as follows:
 

   
Six Months Ended

July 31
   2008  2007
    (in millions)
Revenues   $ —  $ 106
Costs and expenses:         

Cost of revenues    —   96
Selling, general and administrative expenses    —   4

Income before minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries and income taxes   $ —  $ 6

In addition to the operating results of the divested portion of AMSEC LLC, the Company’s results of discontinued operations for the three and six
months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 included gains and losses for certain tax and litigation matters related to Telcordia Technologies, Inc.
(Telcordia) (Note 9) and the divested portion of AMSEC LLC. The Company recognized pre-tax net losses of $2 million and $4 million for the three
and six months ended July 31, 2008, respectively, and pre-tax net gains of $35 million and $44 million for the three and six months ended July 31,
2007, respectively.
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SAIC, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

 
Supplementary Cash Flow Information
The supplementary cash flow information, including non-cash investing and financing activities, for the periods noted were as follows:
 

   
Six Months Ended

July 31
   2008  2007
    (in millions)
Stock exchanged upon exercise of stock options   $ 110  $ 117
Stock issued for settlement of accrued employee benefits   $ 3  $ 4
Increase (decrease) in accrued share repurchases   $ (6) $ 4
Fair value of assets acquired in acquisitions   $ 219  $ —
Cash paid in acquisitions, net of cash acquired of $3 million in 2008    (200)  —
Accrued acquisition payments, net    (12)  —
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions   $ 7  $ —
Cash paid for interest   $ 41  $ 41
Cash paid for income taxes   $ 118  $ 96

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement
In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. EITF 03-6-1 “Determining Whether
Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities.” This statement defines unvested share-based payment
awards containing nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents as “participating securities” subject to inclusion in the computation of
earnings per share (EPS) under the two-class method. This statement is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 and requires
retrospective application to all prior periods presented. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of applying the provisions of this
statement on EPS.

Note 2—Restatement:
The Company has restated its previously issued consolidated financial statements as of January 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the years ended
January 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, and as of April 30, 2008 and for the quarterly periods ended April 30, 2008 and 2007 and these condensed
consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended July 31, 2007. Certain misstatements in the Company’s previously issued
consolidated financial statements resulted from a recently identified transcription error that was initially made in the determination of income taxes
owed from the March 2005 sale of the Company’s subsidiary, Telcordia. These misstatements relate to accounting for the sale of Telcordia, which
is presented as part of discontinued operations in the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended January 31, 2005 and for all
subsequent quarterly and annual periods. These misstatements resulted in the provision for income taxes from discontinued operations for the six
months ended July 31, 2007 being overstated by approximately $1 million, with a corresponding understatement of income from discontinued
operations and net income and a $.01 understatement in diluted EPS and diluted EPS from discontinued operations. The Company has also
restated its business segment information (Note 8) to correct an error that resulted in certain Government segment business activity being reported
in its Commercial segment. This error resulted in an overstatement of Commercial segment revenues and an understatement of Government
segment revenues of $17 million and $34 million for the three and six months ended July 31, 2007, respectively. Additionally, Commercial segment
operating income was overstated and Government segment operating income was understated by $1 million and $3 million for the three and six
months ended July 31, 2007, respectively. This note should be read in conjunction with Note 2—“Restatement” in the notes to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, which provides further information on the nature and impact
of the restatement.

Note 3—Stockholders’ Equity and EPS:
The Company has shares of Class A preferred stock and common stock issued and outstanding. Shares of common stock contain the same
economic rights as shares of Class A preferred stock; however, holders of Class A preferred stock are entitled to 10 votes per share while holders
of common stock are entitled to one vote per share.
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SAIC, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

 
Basic EPS is computed by dividing income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding. Stock awards are included in the computation
of basic EPS only after the shares become vested. Included in the number of shares of Class A preferred stock issued and outstanding as of
July 31, 2008 and 2007 were 13 million shares and 11 million shares, respectively, which were unvested and therefore excluded from the
computation of basic EPS. Diluted EPS is computed similar to basic EPS, except the weighted average number of shares outstanding is increased
to include the dilutive effect of stock options, unvested stock and other stock-based awards granted under stock-based compensation plans that
were outstanding during the periods.

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares outstanding used to compute basic and diluted EPS is as follows:
 

   
Three Months Ended

July 31   
Six Months Ended

July 31
   2008  2007  2008  2007
   (in millions)
Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding   392  405  397  405
Dilutive common share equivalents:             

Stock options   8  11  8  11
Unvested stock awards and other stock-based awards   3  2  3  2

Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding   403  418  408  418
Antidilutive stock options excluded from the calculation of diluted weighted average number of

shares outstanding   7  6  7  6

There were no adjustments to income from continuing operations and income from discontinued operations in calculating basic and diluted EPS for
the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007.

Note 4—Stock-Based Compensation:
Total Stock-Based Compensation. Total stock-based compensation expense for the periods noted was as follows:
 

   
Three Months Ended

July 31   
Six Months Ended

July 31
   2008  2007  2008  2007
   (in millions)
Stock options   $ 8  $ 6  $ 14  $ 13
Vesting stock awards    17   13   30   25
Vested stock awards    1   —   1   —
Employee stock purchase plan (ESPP) discount    —   3   —   7
Total stock-based compensation expense   $ 26  $ 22  $ 45  $ 45

Stock Options. Stock options granted during the six months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 have a vesting period of four years, except for stock
options granted to the Company’s outside directors during the six months ended July 31, 2008, which have a vesting period of one year. All stock
options granted during the six months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 have a term of five years from the date of grant. The fair value of options
granted during the periods noted was determined using the following weighted average assumptions:
 

   
Six Months Ended

July 31  
   2008  2007 
Expected term (in years)   3.9  3.9 
Expected volatility   26.1%  26.9%
Risk-free interest rate   2.3%  4.6%
Dividend yield   0%  0%

The weighted average grant-date fair value of stock options granted during the six months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model was $4.51 and $5.01, respectively.
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SAIC, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

 
Stock option activity for the six months ended July 31, 2008 was as follows:
 

   

Shares of
stock under

options  

Weighted
average

exercise price  

Weighted
average

remaining
contractual

term  
Aggregate

intrinsic value
   (in millions)     (in years)  (in millions)
Outstanding at January 31, 2008   53.5  $ 13.41  2.1  $ 294

Options granted   6.0   18.76       
Options forfeited or expired   (2.3)  12.61       
Options exercised   (12.4)  11.07      103

Outstanding at July 31, 2008   44.8   14.81  2.4   183
Exercisable at July 31, 2008   20.7   13.42  1.6   113

Stock Awards. Vesting stock award activity for the six months ended July 31, 2008 was as follows:
 

   

Shares of stock
under stock

awards  

Weighted
average

grant-
date

fair value
   (in millions)   
Unvested at January 31, 2008   10.2  $ 18.62

Awards granted   4.8   18.75
Awards forfeited   (0.5)  18.57
Awards vested   (1.9)  18.90

Unvested at July 31, 2008   12.6   18.63

The aggregate fair value of vesting stock awards that vested during the six months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 was $35 million and $24 million,
respectively.

ESPP. Effective January 1, 2008, the Company reduced the discount on the ESPP to 5% thereby resulting in the ESPP being non-compensatory.

Note 5—Acquisitions:
During the six months ended July 31, 2008, the Company completed two acquisitions, both in the Government segment, which individually and in
the aggregate were not considered material business combinations, for an aggregate preliminary purchase price of $215 million, including $203
million paid in cash and $12 million in accrued acquisition payments, net. One acquired business designs and produces laser-based systems and
products for military training and testing. The other acquired business provides services in language translation, interpretation and training, and
other consulting services to federal, state and local governments and commercial customers. The preliminary purchase price allocations related to
these acquisitions resulted in an initial estimate of identifiable intangible assets of $26 million and tax deductible goodwill of $172 million. The
Company has not yet obtained all of the information required to complete the purchase price allocations related to these acquisitions and certain
prior year acquisitions. The final purchase price allocations will be completed after the information identified by the Company has been received.

During the three and six months ended July 31, 2008, the Company recorded a goodwill adjustment of $2 million resulting from the finalization of
purchase price allocations related to a prior year acquisition.
 

8



SAIC, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

 
Note 6—Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets, including those arising from preliminary purchase price allocations relating to acquisitions, consisted of the following:
 
   July 31, 2008   January 31, 2008

   

Gross
carrying

value  
Accumulated
amortization  

Net
carrying

value  

Gross
carrying

value  
Accumulated
amortization  

Net
carrying

value
   (in millions)
Amortizable intangible assets:                         

Customer relationships   $ 127  $ 49  $ 78  $ 103  $ 38  $ 65
Software and technology    56   27   29   54   22   32
Other    4   3   1   5   4   1

Total amortizable intangible assets    187   79   108   162   64   98
Non-amortizable intangible assets:                         

Tradenames    4   —   4   4   —   4
Total intangible assets   $ 191  $ 79  $ 112  $ 166  $ 64  $ 102

Amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets was $9 million and $16 million for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008,
respectively, and $6 million and $12 million for the three and six months ended July 31, 2007, respectively. Amortizable intangible assets with a
gross carrying value of $1 million became fully amortized during the six months ended July 31, 2008 and therefore are no longer reflected in the
gross carrying value after becoming fully amortized.

The estimated annual amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets as of July 31, 2008 is as follows (in millions):
 
Fiscal Year Ending January 31    
2009 (remainder of the fiscal year)   $ 17
2010    27
2011    21
2012    15
2013    10
2014 and thereafter    18
   $108

Actual amortization expense in future periods could differ from these estimates as a result of acquisitions, divestitures, impairments, adjustments to
preliminary valuations of intangible assets and other factors. There were no goodwill or intangible asset impairment losses during the three and six
months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007.

Note 7—Comprehensive Income and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) represents certain
components of revenues, expenses, gains and losses that are included in comprehensive income but are excluded from net income. These
amounts are recorded directly as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity, net of tax, and were as follows:
 

   
Three Months Ended

July 31   
Six Months Ended

July 31  
   2008  2007  2008  2007 
   (in millions)  
Other comprehensive income (loss):                  

Foreign currency translation adjustments   $ —  $ 2  $ —  $ 4 
Deferred taxes    —   —   —   (1)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax    —   2   —   3 
Reclassification of realized loss on derivative instruments to net income    2   2   2   2 
Deferred taxes    (1)   (1)  (1)   (1)
Reclassification of realized loss on derivative instruments to net income, net of tax    1   1   1   1 

Pension liability adjustments, net of tax    —   (1)  —   (1)
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax   $ 1  $ 2  $ 1  $ 3 
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SAIC, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

 
The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss were as follows:
 

   
July 31,

2008  
January 31,

2008 
   (in millions)  
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes of $4 million as of July 31, 2008 and January 31, 2008   $ 3  $ 3 
Unrealized net loss on derivative instruments, net of taxes of $4 million and $5 million as of July 31, 2008 and

January 31, 2008, respectively    (6)  (7)
Unrealized loss on defined benefit plan, net of taxes of $8 million as of July 31, 2008 and January 31, 2008    (19)  (19)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes of $16 million and $17 million as of July 31, 2008 and

January 31, 2008, respectively   $ (22) $ (23)

As of July 31, 2008, less than $1 million of the unrealized net loss on derivative instruments will be amortized and recognized as interest expense
during the next 12 months.

Note 8—Business Segment Information:

As discussed in Note 2, the Company has restated its business segment information for the prior year periods to correct an error that resulted in
certain Government segment business activity being reported in the Commercial segment. The following summarizes interim business segment
information with prior year amounts adjusted for discontinued operations and for consistency with the current year’s presentation:
 

   
Three Months Ended

July 31   
Six Months Ended

July 31  
   2008  2007  2008  2007 

      

As Restated
(see Note

2)     

As Restated
(see Note

2) 
   (in millions)  
Revenues:                  

Government segment   $2,431  $ 2,093  $4,682  $ 3,984 
Commercial segment    124   129   242   249 

Total revenues   $2,555  $ 2,222  $4,924  $ 4,233 
Operating income (loss):                  

Government segment   $ 188  $ 169  $ 363  $ 303 
Commercial segment    8   10   11   16 
Corporate and Other segment    (10)  (6)  (15)  (10)

Total operating income   $ 186  $ 173  $ 359  $ 309 

As described in more detail in Note 17 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, the majority of corporate expenses are reflected in the Government and
Commercial segments based on agreed-upon allocations to the segments or as required by U.S. Government Cost Accounting Standards. To the
extent not allocated, corporate expenses are retained in the Corporate and Other segment.

Note 9—Commitments and Contingencies:
Telkom South Africa
The Company’s former Telcordia subsidiary instituted arbitration proceedings before the International Chamber of Commerce (ICC), against
Telkom South Africa in March 2001 as a result of a contract dispute. Telcordia seeks to recover damages for breach of contract, plus interest at a
rate of 15.5%. Telkom South Africa counterclaimed, seeking substantial damages from Telcordia. In September 2002, the arbitrator found that
Telkom South Africa repudiated the contract and dismissed Telkom South Africa’s counterclaims against Telcordia. The damages to be recovered
by Telcordia will be determined in the second phase of the arbitration. Although Telkom South Africa challenged the arbitrator’s partial award in
Telcordia’s favor in the South African court system, the arbitrator’s decision was ultimately upheld.

The second phase of the arbitration to determine the damages to be recovered by Telcordia has commenced. Telcordia submitted its statement of
claim and related document production in March 2007, which seeks damages in excess of $200
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SAIC, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

 
million plus interest and legal fees and costs. As a result of a preliminary hearing with the arbitrator, Telkom South Africa paid Telcordia $9 million
of uncontested damages relating to one aspect of the dispute. In July 2007, the arbitrator ruled that Telcordia is entitled to 15.5% simple interest
per year on awarded damages. Due to the scope and complexity of the disputed technical issues, the arbitrator appointed a third party expert to
provide an independent opinion. At a hearing in April 2008, the arbitrator determined the technical issues that the independent technical expert
would be tasked to analyze. A hearing before the third party expert is scheduled for November 2008 in South Africa. In addition, a hearing before
the arbitrator is scheduled for October 2008 in South Africa to address Telkom South Africa’s motion to amend its statement of defense and its
motion to dismiss a portion of Telcordia’s damage claims for failure to provide adequate financial documentation. Given the current schedule, the
damage phase of the arbitration is unlikely to be completed until after January 31, 2009.

Pursuant to the definitive stock purchase agreement for the sale of Telcordia, the Company is entitled to receive all of the proceeds, net of the tax
liability incurred by Telcordia, from any judgment or settlement. Due to the complex nature of the legal and factual issues involved in the dispute,
the damages that Telcordia will ultimately be awarded in the second phase of arbitration, and therefore the amounts the Company will be entitled to
receive, net of the tax liability incurred by Telcordia, are not presently determinable. The Company does not have any assets or liabilities recorded
related to this contract and the related legal proceedings as of July 31, 2008.

Firm-Fixed-Price Contract with the Greek Government
Original Contract. In May 2003, the Company entered into a euro-denominated firm-fixed-price contract (the Greek contract) with the Hellenic
Republic of Greece (the Customer) to provide a Command, Control, Communications, Coordination and Integration (C4I) System (the System), to
support the 2004 Athens Summer Olympic Games (the Olympics), and to serve as the security system for the Customer’s public order
departments following completion of the Olympics. The System is comprised of 29 subsystems, organized into three major functional areas: the
Command Decision Support System (CDSS), the Communication and Information System and the Command Center Systems. Under the Greek
contract, the System was to be completed, tested, and accepted by September 1, 2004, at a price of approximately $199 million. The Greek
contract also requires the Company to provide five years of System support and maintenance for approximately $16 million and ten years of
TETRA radio network services for approximately $131 million. The Greek contract contains an unpriced option for an additional five years of
TETRA network services.

The Customer took delivery of the System for use and operation during the Olympics beginning in August 2004, and continues to use significant
portions of the System. In November 2004, the Company delivered a revised version of the CDSS portion of the System to the Customer.
Beginning in December 2004 and continuing through April 2005, the Customer performed subsystems acceptance testing on each of the
subsystems comprising the System based on test procedures that had not been mutually agreed upon by the parties. The Customer identified
numerous omissions and deviations in its test reports. The Company believes that certain of these omissions and deviations were valid, while
others were not.

Modification of Contract. In March 2007, the Company and the Customer executed a modification to the Greek contract which establishes specific
requirements, contract terms, and a payment schedule under which the various subsystems can be completed and provides for, among other
things, the following:
 

•  acceptance of 20 specific subsystems of the 29 subsystems comprising the System within 70 days of the execution of the modification
 

•  payment of $34 million within 30 days of the Company submitting invoices for certain work already performed on both the system
development portion and service portion of the Greek contract

 

•  reduction of the advance payment and performance bonds maintained by the Company in favor of the Customer by at least $123 million
which represents the value of the 20 subsystems required to be accepted within 70 days of the execution of the modification

 

•  credit for past warranty, maintenance and TETRA services
 

•  a revised test and acceptance process for the remaining subsystems being re-delivered during 2008
 

•  provision of subsystem maintenance for a period of up to 5 years following subsystem acceptance

In connection with the acceptance of 20 of the 29 subsystems referred to above, the Greek contract modification provides a framework for the
parties to determine the price reduction for omissions and deviations relating to those subsystems. An agreement of the parties limits the total price
reduction for these subsystems to a maximum of $12 million. In September 2007, the Greek contract was further modified to provide for an
extension of the system development portion of the Greek contract to October 2008, as previously agreed.
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Performance of Modified Contract. Subsequent to the modification of the Greek contract in March 2007, the following developments have occurred:
 

•  19 of the 20 subsystems to have been accepted within 70 days of the execution of the modification have been fully and finally accepted by
the Customer. A subcontractor, in consultation with the Company and the Customer, has chosen to remediate omissions and deviations in
the remaining subsystem it delivered, in an effort to minimize or eliminate the price reduction associated with it. Remediation and re-testing of
the subsystem is ongoing. The contract authorizes such remediation as long as it is completed before the System acceptance testing to be
conducted in fiscal year 2009.

 

•  The Customer has paid substantially all of the $34 million related to services previously performed required to be paid within 30 days of the
Company submitting its invoices.

 

•  The Company has an informal agreement with the Customer to resolve the omissions and deviations on 18 subsystems for a total price
reduction of $6 million which has not been finalized through a contract modification.

 

•  The Customer has reduced the advance payment, performance and offset bonds requirement by $157 million.
 

•  The Company and its subcontractors are performing work under the terms of the modified Greek contract and modified subcontracts,
including the requirement to deliver a modified CDSS.

 

•  The parent corporation of the Company’s principal subcontractor has been subject to a number of investigations focusing on alleged
improper payments to government officials and political parties in a number of countries, including Greece. The Company’s subcontractor
previously represented to the Company that it did not make improper payments in connection with the Greek contract. However, more
recently, the subcontractor indicated that its board of directors has initiated a comprehensive, independent investigation to determine if
improper payments were made by the subcontractor to obtain business worldwide, including in connection with the Greek contract. The
Company has taken a number of actions to confirm the accuracy of its subcontractor’s representations. If the subcontractor’s representations
are ultimately determined to be false and improper payments were in fact made in connection with the Greek contract, the legal compliance
and political issues that this would raise could impact the Company’s subcontractor’s ability to perform the subcontract and the Company’s
ability to perform the Greek contract. This could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

Financial Status and Contingencies of the Greek Contract. The Company has recorded $124 million of losses under the Greek contract as of
July 31, 2008. No profits or losses were recorded during the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007. The $124 million loss reflected
the Company’s estimated total cost to complete the System under the original Greek contract and assumed the Greek contract value was limited to
the cash received to date.

The Greek contract modification resulted in significant changes to the terms and conditions and the deliverables under the Greek contract and
clarifies the parties’ responsibilities. If the Company completes the work and receives future payments as required under the modified Greek
contract, the Company may reverse a portion of the losses previously recognized. However, based on the complex nature of this contractual
situation and the difficulties encountered to date, significant uncertainties exist and the Company is unable to reliably estimate the ultimate
outcome. Accordingly, the Company has not adjusted and will not adjust the losses on this contract until such time as the Company can reliably
estimate the ultimate outcome of the modified contract. Also, as a result of the significant uncertainties that remain on this contract, the Company is
utilizing the completed-contract method of accounting for the system development portion of this contract. Examples of these uncertainties include
acceptance of the remaining subsystems and the overall system, receipt of the remaining payments, release of the remaining bonds, changes in
the political representatives from the Greek government involved with the project and subcontractor performance and legal compliance issues.
Accordingly, no additional revenue will be recognized on the development portion of the contract until it is completed. Revenue on the maintenance
portion of the contract is recognized as maintenance payments are received from the Customer. Although the Company expects to receive
additional payments in accordance with the terms of the modified Greek contract, the Company’s accounting as of July 31, 2008 was based on
cash received to date. Through July 31, 2008, the Company has recognized revenues of $161 million, which represents a portion of the $206
million of cash received to date. The Company recognized $4 million of revenues and equal amounts of costs on the maintenance portion of the
Greek contract during the three and six months ended July 31, 2008.

The Company has $17 million of accounts receivable (classified as other assets) relating to value added taxes (VAT) that the Company has paid
and believes the Company is entitled to recover either as a refund from the taxing authorities or as a payment under the Greek contract upon final
billing. The Customer has paid to the Company all amounts owed for VAT to date for the subsystems accepted and services provided. Failure by
the Customer to pay any future VAT amounts could result in an additional obligation payable by the Company to the Greek taxing authorities and
could increase the Company’s total losses on the Greek contract.
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In accordance with the terms of the Greek contract, the Company is required to maintain certain advance payment, performance and offset bonds
in favor of the Customer. As of July 31, 2008, these bonding requirements have been met through the issuance of $120 million in standby letters of
credit. If the standby letters of credit are called based on a future failure to fulfill the Company’s obligations under the Greek contract, the Company
may have the right to call some of the $71 million of bonds provided by the Company’s subcontractors in connection with their work under the
Greek contract if the performance failure relates to subcontracted work.

If the Company and its subcontractors are unable to perform in accordance with the modified Greek contract, damages or claims by the Customer
or subcontractors may be successfully asserted against the Company, the Company’s bonds may be called, and the Customer may be able to
recover additional contract costs required to fulfill the Company’s obligations. This could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Nuclear Regulatory Commission
The U.S. Department of Justice filed a lawsuit against the Company in September 2004 in the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia
alleging civil False Claims Act violations and breach of contract by the Company on two contracts that the Company had with the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC). The complaint alleges that the Company’s performance of several subcontracts on separate Department of Energy
(DOE) programs, the participation of a Company employee in an industry trade association and certain other alleged relationships created
organizational conflicts of interest under the two NRC contracts. The Company disputes that the work performed on the DOE programs and the
alleged relationships raised by the government created organizational conflicts of interest. In July 2008, the trial of the case commenced and the
jury found in favor of the government on the breach of contract and two False Claims Act counts. The jury awarded a nominal amount of $78 in
damages for breach of contract and $2 million in damages for the False Claims Act claims. Under the False Claims Act, the judge may treble the
damages. In addition, the judge can award between $5,500 and $11,000 in penalties for each of the 77 false statements or false claims the jury
found in the case. The judge has not yet entered the judgment. The Company intends to file post-trial motions challenging any judgment entered.
The Company also intends to file an appeal, if necessary. The Company has recorded a liability of $7 million for this matter as of July 31, 2008.

Other
The Company is routinely subject to investigations and reviews relating to compliance with various laws and regulations with respect to its role as a
contractor to agencies and departments of the U.S. Government and in connection with performing services in countries outside of the United
States. Such matters can lead to criminal, civil or administrative proceedings and the Company could be faced with penalties, fines, repayments or
compensatory damages. Adverse findings could also have a material adverse effect on the Company because of its reliance on government
contracts. Although the Company can give no assurance, based upon management’s evaluation of current matters that are subject to U.S.
Government investigations of which the Company is aware and based on management’s current understanding of the facts, the Company does not
believe that the outcome of any such matter would likely have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations,
cash flows or its ability to conduct business.

U.S. Government agencies routinely review their contractors’ performance on contracts, cost structure, pricing practices and compliance with
applicable contracting and procurement laws, regulations and standards. Such reviews may result in adjustments to contract costs, and costs
found to be improperly allocated must be refunded to customers as required. In addition, the U.S. Government may apply penalties under certain
circumstances. All of the Company’s indirect contract costs have been agreed upon through fiscal year 2004 and are not subject to further
adjustment. The Company has recorded contract revenues subsequent to fiscal year 2004 based upon costs that the Company believes will be
approved upon final review. However, the Company does not know the outcome of any future reviews and adjustments and, if future adjustments
exceed the Company’s estimates, its profitability could be adversely affected.

The Company is subject to routine compliance reviews by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and other taxing authorities. The IRS is currently
reviewing fiscal years 2005 and 2006. During the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that resolution of these reviews by the IRS and other
taxing authorities, both domestic and international, could be reached with respect to $31 million of the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits
($22 million of which relates to discontinued operations), depending on the timing of ongoing examinations, litigation and expiration of statute of
limitations, either because the Company’s tax positions are sustained on audit or because the Company agrees to their disallowance and pays the
related income tax. These unrecognized tax benefits are primarily related to research and development, foreign tax credits and certain recurring
deductions customary for the Company’s industry. As of July 31, 2008, the Company had liabilities for uncertain tax positions of $54 million,
including $23 million related to discontinued operations.
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The Company has effectively settled with the IRS and many states for all fiscal years prior to and including fiscal year 2004. While the Company
believes it has adequate accruals for uncertain tax positions, the tax authorities may determine that the Company owes taxes in excess of
recorded accruals or the recorded accruals may be in excess of the final settlement amounts agreed to by tax authorities.

The Company is subject to periodic audits by state and local governments for taxes other than income taxes. The Company does not believe that
the outcome of any other such tax matters would have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or its ability to conduct business. As a result of a dispute over the proper interpretation of contract pricing terms, the Company has initiated a
lawsuit against a state government customer seeking payment for certain technical services. Although the amount of the claim, based on three
unpaid invoices, is only approximately $40,000, the resolution of the claim is expected to resolve the pricing interpretation dispute and could have
significant implications for the contract going forward. While the Company is confident that its interpretation of the pricing terms is correct, if the
customer’s interpretation prevails, given estimated future tasking over the five year term of the base contract and the two option years, the
Company estimates that this could result in an aggregate loss on the contract of approximately $5 million to $50 million, with the lower end of the
range more likely. Both parties filed motions for summary judgment, each seeking to establish that its interpretation of the contract pricing terms
was correct. The judge denied both parties’ motions, and the Company has filed a notice of appeal. The discovery phase of the litigation is
proceeding in parallel with the Company’s appeal. The Company is unable to determine the outcome and accordingly, has not recorded a liability
for this matter as of July 31, 2008.

The Company is also involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct of its business, none of which, in the opinion of the
Company’s management, based upon current information, will likely have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
position, results of operations, cash flows or its ability to conduct business.

Note 10—Supplemental Guarantor Information:
SAIC, Inc. (Parent) has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of Science Applications International Corporation (Subsidiary Issuer)
under its $300 million 5.5% notes, $550 million 6.25% notes and $250 million 7.125% notes. The Subsidiary Issuer paid $100 million to settle its
6.75% notes, which had also been guaranteed by the Parent, at maturity on February 1, 2008.

The Parent loans cash to the Subsidiary Issuer and issues stock, including stock-based compensation awards, to employees of the Subsidiary
Issuer. The Subsidiary Issuer is the operating subsidiary of the Parent.

As discussed in Note 2, the Company has restated its previously issued consolidated financial statements, including the condensed consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended July 31, 2007. This restatement impacted income from discontinued operations and net income in
the Subsidiary Issuer’s consolidated income statement for the six months ended July 31, 2007, and equity in net income of consolidated
subsidiaries in the Parent’s income statement and the related income statement elimination entries for the same period.

As permitted by SEC rules, the following condensed consolidating financial statement information is provided as an alternative to filing separate
financial statements of the Subsidiary Issuer. The condensed consolidating financial statement information should be read in conjunction with the
condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company and notes thereto of which this note is an integral part.
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The following tables present condensed consolidating financial information for the Parent and the Subsidiary Issuer.

SAIC, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income

 
   Three Months Ended July 31, 2008  

   Parent  
Subsidiary

Issuer  Eliminations  Consolidated 
   (in millions)  
Revenues   $ —  $ 2,555  $ —  $ 2,555 
Costs and expenses:                  

Cost of revenues    —   2,202   —   2,202 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    —   167   —   167 

Operating income    —   186   —   186 
Non-operating income (expense):                  

Interest income    10   6   (10)  6 
Interest expense    —   (31)  10   (21)
Other income, net    —   3   —   3 
Equity in net income of consolidated subsidiaries    104   —   (104)  — 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes    114   164   (104)  174 
Provision for income taxes    (5)  (65)  —   (70)
Income from continuing operations    109   99   (104)  104 
Discontinued operations:                  

Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes    —   (2)  —   (2)
Benefit for income taxes    —   7   —   7 

Income from discontinued operations    —   5   —   5 
Net income   $ 109  $ 104  $ (104) $ 109 
 
   Six Months Ended July 31, 2008  

   Parent  
Subsidiary

Issuer  Eliminations  Consolidated 
   (in millions)  
Revenues   $ —  $ 4,924  $ —  $ 4,924 
Costs and expenses:                  

Cost of revenues    —   4,255   —   4,255 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    —   310   —   310 

Operating income    —   359   —   359 
Non-operating income (expense):                  

Interest income    21   14   (21)  14 
Interest expense    —   (61)  21   (40)
Other income, net    —   11   —   11 
Equity in net income of consolidated subsidiaries    199   —   (199)  — 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes    220   323   (199)  344 
Provision for income taxes    (8)  (128)  —   (136)
Income from continuing operations    212   195   (199)  208 
Discontinued operations:                  

Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes    —   (4)  —   (4)
Benefit for income taxes    —   8   —   8 

Income from discontinued operations    —   4   —   4 
Net income   $ 212  $ 199  $ (199) $ 212 
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   Three Months Ended July 31, 2007  

   Parent  
Subsidiary

Issuer  Eliminations  Consolidated 
   (in millions)  
Revenues   $ —  $ 2,222  $ —  $ 2,222 
Costs and expenses:                  

Cost of revenues    —   1,910   —   1,910 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    —   139   —   139 

Operating income    —   173   —   173 
Non-operating income (expense):                  

Interest income    16   14   (16)  14 
Interest expense    —   (39)  16   (23)
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries    —   (1)  —   (1)
Other expense, net    —   (4)  —   (4)
Equity in net income of consolidated subsidiaries    121   —   (121)  — 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes    137   143   (121)  159 
Provision for income taxes    (6)  (54)  —   (60)
Income from continuing operations    131   89   (121)  99 
Discontinued operations:                  

Income from discontinued operations before minority interest in income of consolidated
subsidiaries and income taxes    —   37   —   37 

Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries    —   (1)  —   (1)
Provision for income taxes    —   (4)  —   (4)

Income from discontinued operations    —   32   —   32 
Net income   $131  $ 121  $ (121) $ 131 

   Six Months Ended July 31, 2007  

   Parent  
Subsidiary

Issuer  Eliminations  Consolidated 

         

As Restated
(see Note

2)    
   (in millions)  
Revenues   $ —  $ 4,233  $ —  $ 4,233 
Costs and expenses:                  

Cost of revenues    —   3,656   —   3,656 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    —   268   —   268 

Operating income    —   309   —   309 
Non-operating income (expense):                  

Interest income    31   25   (28)  28 
Interest expense    —   (73)  28   (45)
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries    —   (3)  —   (3)
Other expense, net    —   (4)  —   (4)
Equity in net income of consolidated subsidiaries    192   —   (192)  — 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes    223   254   (192)  285 
Provision for income taxes    (11)  (100)  —   (111)
Income from continuing operations    212   154   (192)  174 
Discontinued operations:                  

Income from discontinued operations before minority interest in income of consolidated
subsidiaries and income taxes    —   50   —   50 

Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries    —   (2)  —   (2)
Provision for income taxes    —   (10)  —   (10)

Income from discontinued operations    —   38   —   38 
Net income   $212  $ 192  $ (192) $ 212 
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SAIC, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
 
   July 31, 2008

   Parent  
Subsidiary

Issuer  Eliminations  Consolidated
   (in millions)
ASSETS                 
Current assets:                 

Cash and cash equivalents   $ —  $ 692  $ —  $ 692
Receivables, net    —   1,885   —   1,885
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets    —   296   —   296

Total current assets    —   2,873   —   2,873
Property, plant and equipment, net    —   392   —   392
Intangible assets, net    —   112   —   112
Goodwill    —   1,247   —   1,247
Deferred income taxes    —   68   —   68
Other assets    925   108   (925)  108
Investment in consolidated subsidiaries    887   —   (887)  —
   $1,812  $ 4,800  $ (1,812) $ 4,800
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY                 
Current liabilities:                 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   $ —  $ 1,126  $ —  $ 1,126
Accrued payroll and employee benefits    —   561   —   561
Income taxes payable    —   32   —   32
Notes payable and long-term debt, current portion    —   21   —   21

Total current liabilities    —   1,740   —   1,740
Notes payable and long-term debt, net of current portion    —   2,024   (925)  1,099
Other long-term liabilities    —   149   —   149
Total stockholders’ equity    1,812   887   (887)  1,812
   $1,812  $ 4,800  $ (1,812) $ 4,800

   January 31, 2008

   Parent  
Subsidiary

Issuer  Eliminations  Consolidated
   (in millions)
ASSETS                 

Current assets:                 
Cash and cash equivalents   $ —  $ 1,096  $ —  $ 1,096
Receivables, net    —   1,886   —   1,886
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets    —   255   —   255

Total current assets    —   3,237   —   3,237
Property, plant and equipment, net    —   393   —   393
Intangible assets, net    —   102   —   102
Goodwill    —   1,077   —   1,077
Deferred income taxes    —   71   —   71
Other assets    1,187   101   (1,187)  101
Investment in consolidated subsidiaries    687   —   (687)  —
   $1,874  $ 4,981  $ (1,874) $ 4,981
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY                 
Current liabilities:                 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   $ 6  $ 1,105  $ —  $ 1,111
Accrued payroll and employee benefits    —   562   —   562
Income taxes payable    —   64   —   64
Notes payable and long-term debt, current portion    —   130   —   130

Total current liabilities    6   1,861   —   1,867
Notes payable and long-term debt, net of current portion    —   2,285   (1,187)  1,098
Other long-term liabilities    —   148   —   148
Total stockholders’ equity    1,868   687   (687)  1,868
   $1,874  $ 4,981  $ (1,874) $ 4,981
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SAIC, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
 
   Six Months Ended July 31, 2008  

   Parent  
Subsidiary

Issuer  Eliminations  Consolidated 
   (in millions)  
Cash flows provided by operations   $ 20  $ 222  $  —  $ 242 
Cash flows from investing activities:                  

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment    —   (25)  —   (25)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired of $3 million    —   (200)  —   (200)
Payments for businesses acquired in previous years    —   (3)  —   (3)
Other    —   12   —   12 

Total cash flows used in investing activities    —   (216)  —   (216)
Cash flows from financing activities:                  

Payments on notes payable and long-term debt    —   (110)  —   (110)
Proceeds (payments) on intercompany obligations    (20)  20   —   — 
Sales of stock and exercise of stock options    —   50   —   50 
Repurchases of stock    —   (416)  —   (416)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation    —   43   —   43 
Other    —   (1)  —   (1)

Total cash flows used in financing activities    (20)  (414)  —   (434)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations    —   (408)  —   (408)
Cash flows of discontinued operations:                  

Cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations    —   9   —   9 
Cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations    —   (5)  —   (5)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations    —   4   —   4 
Total decrease in cash and cash equivalents    —   (404)  —   (404)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    —   1,096   —   1,096 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ —  $ 692  $  —  $ 692 

Non-cash changes in the intercompany obligations between the Parent and Subsidiary Issuer were as follows:
 

   
Six Months Ended

July 31, 2008
   (in millions)
Repurchases of Parent stock by Subsidiary Issuer on behalf of Parent   $ 416
Sales or issuances of stock by Parent on behalf of Subsidiary Issuer   $ 53
Stock-based compensation recognized by Subsidiary Issuer   $ 45
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation realized by Subsidiary Issuer   $ 43
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   Six Months Ended July 31, 2007  

   Parent   
Subsidiary

Issuer   Eliminations  Consolidated 
   (in millions)  
Cash flows provided by operations   $ 30  $ 98  $  —  $ 128 
Cash flows from investing activities:                  

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment    —   (23)  —   (23)
Other    —   (2)  —   (2)

Total cash flows used in investing activities    —   (25)  —   (25)
Cash flows from financing activities:                  

Payments on notes payable and long-term debt    —   (9)  —   (9)
Issuances (payments) on intercompany obligations    (944)  944   —   — 
Sales of stock and exercise of stock options    —   55   —   55 
Repurchases of stock    (8)  (164)  —   (172)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation    —   39   —   39 

Total cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities    (952)  865   —   (87)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations    (922)  938   —   16 
Cash flows of discontinued operations:                  

Cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations    —   (1)  —   (1)
Cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations    —   3   —   3 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations    —   2   —   2 
Total increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    (922)  940   —   18 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period—continuing operations    922   187   —   1,109 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period—discontinued operations    —   4   —   4 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    922   191   —   1,113 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ —  $ 1,131  $  —  $ 1,131 

Non-cash changes in the intercompany obligations between the Parent and Subsidiary Issuer were as follows:
 

   
Six Months Ended

July 31, 2007
   (in millions)
Repurchases of Parent stock by Subsidiary Issuer on behalf of Parent   $ 164
Sales or issuances of stock by Parent on behalf of Subsidiary Issuer   $ 59
Stock based compensation recognized by Subsidiary Issuer   $ 45
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation realized by Subsidiary Issuer   $ 39
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations and quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market
risk should be read in conjunction with the condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes. The following discussion contains
forward-looking statements, including statements regarding our intent, belief or current expectations with respect to, among other things, trends
affecting our financial condition or results of operations and the impact of competition. Such statements are not guarantees of future performance
and involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors. Some of these factors include, but are not limited to the risk factors set forth in our original Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended January 31, 2008, as filed on March 28, 2008, as may be updated periodically through subsequent quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. Due to
such uncertainties and risks, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
hereof. We do not undertake any obligation to update these factors or to publicly announce the results of any changes to our forward-looking
statements due to future events or developments.

Unless otherwise noted, references to years are for fiscal years ended January 31. For example, we refer to the fiscal year ended January 31,
2009 as fiscal 2009. We are currently in fiscal 2009.

All financial information in the tables presented in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
affected by the restatement described in Note 2 of the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and six
months ended July 31, 2008 that was not included in Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended January 31, 2008 or in Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-Q/A to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 30,
2008 has been restated.

Overview
We are a provider of scientific, engineering, systems integration and technical services and solutions to all branches of the U.S. military, agencies
of the U.S. Department of Defense, the intelligence community, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and other U.S. Government civil
agencies, state and local government agencies, foreign governments and customers in selected commercial markets. We use the terms
“Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” to refer to SAIC, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Our business is focused on solving issues of national and global importance in the areas of defense, intelligence, homeland security, logistics and
product support, systems engineering and integration and research and development. We are also focused on expanding our business in the
areas of energy, health, environmental, cyber security, and space superiority. Our significant long-term management initiatives include:
 

•  achieving internal, or non-acquisition related, annual revenue growth through investments in business development, internal research and
new product and technology development, and through increased focus on pursuing more large lead system integrator contract
opportunities;

 

•  improving our operating income margin by increasing contract fees (by improving internal collaboration, increasing our growth in higher-
margin business areas, and improving profitability on material and subcontractor deliverables) and improving our indirect cost structure
(through better recovery of our indirect costs, streamlining our overhead infrastructure, and reducing unallowable and unbillable costs);

 

•  improving our information technology systems infrastructure and related business processes for greater effectiveness and efficiency across
all business functions;

 

•  investing in our people, including enhanced training and career development programs, with a focus on retention and recruiting; and
 

•  disciplined deployment of our cash resources and use of our capital structure to enhance growth and shareholder value through strategic
acquisitions, share repurchases and other uses as conditions warrant.

Key financial highlights and events, including progress against these initiatives, during the three months ended July 31, 2008 include:
 

•  Revenues for the three months ended July 31, 2008 increased 15% over the same period in the prior year, reflecting an internal revenue
growth (as defined in “Results of Operations—Revenues”) rate of 10%. Our internal revenue growth for the three months ended July 31,
2008 was favorably impacted by increased activity on a number of new and continuing programs in our defense, logistics and product
support and intelligence business areas.
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•  Operating income as a percentage of revenues decreased from 7.8% for the three months ended July 31, 2007 to 7.3% for the three months

ended July 31, 2008. This decrease was primarily due to lower recoveries of prior year indirect cost overruns, a higher percentage of material
and subcontractor revenues and higher sales, general and administrative expense offset by slightly higher contract fees for the three months
ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year. Material and subcontractor revenues generally have lower margins as
compared to our labor-related revenues. Operating income was also negatively impacted by $6 million in the three months ended July 31,
2008 as a result of an adverse verdict in a lawsuit involving contracts with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and $8 million in the three
months ended July 31, 2007 associated with actions taken to remediate data security lapses on several customer contracts.

 

•  Income from continuing operations increased $5 million over the same period in the prior year primarily due to increased operating income on
higher revenues.

 

•  Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations increased 8% for the three months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same
period in the prior year due to a $5 million, or 5%, increase in income from continuing operations and a 15 million share, or 4%, decline in
diluted weighted average shares outstanding.

 

•  Cash and cash equivalents increased $30 million during the three months ended July 31, 2008 primarily due to $229 million generated from
operations offset by $157 million paid to repurchase shares of our stock, and $65 million paid related to the acquisition of a business (net of
cash acquired of $2 million).

 

•  We completed a business acquisition during the three months ended July 31, 2008 for a preliminary purchase price of $79 million, including
$65 million in cash and $14 million in accrued acquisition payments. The acquired business provides services in language translation,
interpretation and training, and other consulting services to federal, state and local governments and commercial customers.

 

•  Net bookings (as defined in “Key Financial Metrics—Bookings and Backlog”) were approximately $3.3 billion for the three months ended
July 31, 2008. Total backlog was $15.9 billion at July 31, 2008 and increased by approximately $822 million during the three months ended
July 31, 2008.

Reportable Segments
We have three reportable segments: Government, Commercial, and Corporate and Other. Our operating business units are aggregated into the
Government or Commercial segments, depending on the nature of the customers, the contractual requirements and the regulatory environment
governing the business unit’s services. Except with respect to “Other Income Statement Items—Discontinued Operations” and “Net Income and
Earnings per Share,” all amounts in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” are presented
for our continuing operations.

As discussed in Note 2 of the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended July 31,
2008, prior period business segment information has been restated to correct an error that resulted in certain Government segment business
activity being reported in the Commercial segment.

Government Segment. Through our Government segment, we provide systems engineering, systems integration and advanced technical services
and solutions primarily to U.S. federal, state and local government agencies and foreign governments. Within the Government segment, a
significant portion of our revenues are derived from contracts with the U.S. Government. The revenues from contracts with the U.S. Government
include contracts where we serve as the prime or lead contractor, as well as contracts where we serve as a subcontractor to other parties who are
engaged directly with various U.S. Government agencies as the prime contractor. Some revenues in the Government segment are derived from
non-government customers for whom the work is performed by a Government segment business unit.

Commercial Segment. Through our Commercial segment, we primarily target commercial customers worldwide in select industry markets, which
currently include oil and gas, utilities and life sciences. While the Commercial segment provides an array of IT systems integration and advanced
technical services, the focused offerings include applications and IT infrastructure management, data lifecycle management, and business
transformation services. Our Commercial segment customers often benefit from leveraging our broader governmental experiences, such as
geographic information systems, security, and systems engineering.

Corporate and Other Segment. Our Corporate and Other segment includes the operations of our internal real estate management subsidiary,
various corporate activities and certain corporate expense items not allocable to our U.S. Government customers referred to as unallowable
expenses. Our Corporate and Other segment does not contract with third parties for the purpose of generating revenues.
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Key Financial Metrics

Sources of Revenues
We recognize revenues under our contracts primarily using the percentage-of-completion method. Under the percentage-of-completion method,
revenues are recognized based on progress towards completion, with performance measured by the cost-to-cost method, efforts-expended
method or units-of-delivery method, all of which require estimating total costs at completion. The contracting process used for procurement,
including indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity (IDIQ), U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) Schedule, and other master agreement contract
vehicles, does not determine revenue recognition.

Bookings and Backlog. We recorded net bookings worth an estimated $3.3 billion and $5.8 billion during the three and six months ended July 31,
2008, respectively. Bookings generally represent the estimated amount of revenue to be earned in the future from funded and unfunded contract
awards received during the period, net of any adjustments to backlog amounts. We calculate bookings as the period ending backlog plus the
period’s revenues less prior period ending backlog and less backlog obtained in acquisitions.

Backlog represents the amount of work under negotiated contracts which has not yet been performed. We segregate our backlog into two
categories as follows:
 

•  Funded Backlog. Government segment funded backlog primarily represents contracts for which funding is appropriated less revenues
previously recognized on these contracts. Government segment funded backlog does not include the unfunded portion of contracts where
funding is incrementally appropriated or authorized on a quarterly or annual basis by the U.S. Government and other customers, even though
the contract may call for performance over a number of years. Commercial segment funded backlog represents the full value on firm
contracts, which may cover multiple future years, under which we are obligated to perform, less revenues previously recognized on these
contracts.

 

•  Negotiated Unfunded Backlog. Negotiated unfunded backlog represents estimated amounts of revenue to be earned in the future from
(1) negotiated contracts for which funding has not been appropriated or otherwise authorized and (2) unexercised priced contract options.
Negotiated unfunded backlog does not include any estimate of future potential task orders expected to be awarded under IDIQ, GSA
Schedule, or other master agreement contract vehicles.

The estimated value of our total backlog as of the dates noted was as follows:
 

   
July 31,

2008  
January 31,

2008
   (in millions)
Government segment:         

Funded backlog   $ 4,753  $ 4,322
Negotiated unfunded backlog    10,295   9,719
Total backlog   $15,048  $ 14,041

Commercial segment:         
Funded backlog   $ 632  $ 740
Negotiated unfunded backlog    252   193
Total backlog   $ 884  $ 933

Total:         
Funded backlog   $ 5,385  $ 5,062
Negotiated unfunded backlog    10,547   9,912
Total backlog   $15,932  $ 14,974

Total backlog may fluctuate from period to period depending on our success rate in winning contracts and the timing of contract awards, renewals,
modifications and cancellations.

We expect to recognize a substantial portion of our funded backlog as revenues within the next 12 months. However, the U.S. Government may
cancel any contract at any time. In addition, certain contracts in the Commercial segment include provisions that allow the customer to cancel at
any time. Most of our contracts have cancellation terms that would permit us to recover all or a portion of our incurred costs and potential fees for
work performed.

Contract Types. We generate revenues under the following types of contracts:
 

•  Cost-reimbursement contracts which provide for reimbursement of our direct contract costs and allocable indirect costs, plus a fee.
 

•  Time-and-materials (T&M) contracts which typically provide for negotiated fixed hourly rates plus reimbursement of other direct costs.
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•  Fixed-price-level-of-effort contracts which are substantially similar to T&M contracts except they require a specified level of effort over a

stated period of time.
 

•  Firm-fixed-price (FFP) contracts which provide for a fixed price for specified products, systems and/or services. If actual costs vary from
planned costs on a FFP contract, we generate more or less than the planned amount of profit and may even incur a loss.

The following table summarizes revenues by contract type as a percentage of total revenues for the periods noted:
 
   Six Months Ended July 31 
   2008   2007  
Cost-reimbursement   47%  48%
T&M and fixed-price-level-of-effort   35  35 
FFP   18  17 

Total   100%  100%

Revenue Mix. We generate revenues under our contracts from (1) the efforts of our technical staff, which we refer to as labor-related revenues and
(2) the materials provided on a contract and efforts of our subcontractors, which we refer to as material and subcontractor (M&S) revenues. M&S
revenues are generated primarily from large, multi-year systems integration contracts and contracts in our logistics and product support business
area as well as through sales of our proprietary products, such as our border, port and mobile security products. While our border, port and mobile
security products provide higher margins, M&S revenues generally have lower margins than our labor-related revenues. The following table
presents changes in labor-related revenues and M&S revenues for the periods noted:
 
   Three Months Ended July 31  Six Months Ended July 31 

   2008  
Percent
change  2007  2008  

Percent
change  2007 

   (dollars in millions)  
Labor-related revenues   $1,541  13% $1,364  $2,985  12% $2,666 

As a percentage of revenues    60%     61%  61%     63%
M&S revenues    1,014  18   858   1,939  24   1,567 

As a percentage of revenues    40%     39%  39%     37%

The increase in labor-related revenues for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same periods in the prior year is
primarily due to increases in labor rates and increases in the number of direct personnel, including the addition of employees of four businesses
acquired since July 31, 2007. At July 31, 2008, we had approximately 44,700 full-time and part-time employees as compared to 41,700 at July 31,
2007. The increase in M&S revenues for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same periods in the prior year is
primarily due to a number of factors, including increased activity as a prime contractor on large systems integration programs involving significant
subcontracted efforts, growth in our logistics and product support business area from several new and continuing programs, and the timing and
volume of material deliveries under continuing programs primarily with U.S. Department of Defense customers partially offset by declines in
shipments of our border, port and mobile security products.

Cost of Revenues and Operating Expenses
Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues includes direct labor and related fringe benefits, overhead, and direct expenses incurred to complete contracts
and task orders, such as subcontract labor and materials. Overhead consists of indirect costs relating to rent/facilities, administration, depreciation,
management information systems expenses, travel and other expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses are primarily for corporate administrative
functions, such as management, legal, finance and accounting, contracts and administration, human resources and certain information technology
expenses. SG&A also includes bid and proposal and internal research and development expenses.
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Results of Operations
The following table summarizes our results of operations for the periods noted:
 
   Three Months Ended July 31  Six Months Ended July 31 

   2008  
Percent
change  2007  2008  

Percent
change  2007 

                  As Restated 
   (dollars in millions)  
Revenues   $2,555  15% $2,222  $4,924  16% $ 4,233 
Cost of revenues    2,202  15   1,910   4,255  16   3,656 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    167  20   139   310  16   268 
            
Operating income    186  8   173   359  16   309 

As a percentage of revenues    7.3%     7.8%  7.3%     7.3%
Non-operating expense    (12)      (14)   (15)      (24)
            
Income from continuing operations before income taxes    174  9   159   344  21   285 
Provision for income taxes    (70)  (17)   (60)   (136)  (23)   (111)
            
Income from continuing operations    104  5   99   208  20   174 
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax    5      32   4      38 
            
Net income   $ 109  (17)  $ 131  $ 212  —  $ 212 
            

Revenues. Our revenues increased $333 million, or 15%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and $691 million, or 16%, for the six months
ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year primarily due to growth in revenues in our Government segment, including
growth related to the acquisition of businesses. Internal, or non-acquisition related, revenue growth was 10% and 12% for the three and six months
ended July 31, 2008, respectively, as compared to the same periods in the prior year. We calculate internal revenue growth by comparing our
reported revenue for the period to the revenue for the same period in the prior year adjusted to include the revenue of acquired businesses for the
comparable period before acquisition. Revenue growth related to the acquisition of businesses was 5% and 4% for the three and six months ended
July 31, 2008, respectively, as compared to the same periods in the prior year.

The following table summarizes changes in segment revenues for the periods noted:
 
   Three Months Ended July 31  Six Months Ended July 31 

   2008  
Percent
change  2007  2008  

Percent
change  2007 

         As Restated        As Restated 
   (dollars in millions)  
Government segment revenues   $2,431  16% $ 2,093  $4,682  18% $ 3,984 

As a percentage of total revenues    95%     94%  95%     94%
Commercial segment revenues    124  (4)   129   242  (3)   249 

As a percentage of total revenues    5%     6%  5%     6%
            

Total revenues   $2,555  15  $ 2,222  $4,924  16  $ 4,233 
            

Government segment revenues increased $338 million, or 16%, during the three months ended July 31, 2008 and $698 million, or 18%, during the
six months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year. Internal, or non-acquisition related, revenue growth in the
Government segment was 11% and 13% for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008, respectively, as compared to the same periods in the
prior year. Internal revenue growth in the Government segment for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 was attributable to continued
growth across a number of our business areas, most notably our defense, logistics and product support and intelligence business areas. Growth in
our defense business area was led by increased volume in Command, Control and Communications programs with the U.S. Navy and Marine
Corps customers, including integration of communication systems on mine resistant ambush protected (MRAP) vehicles. Our logistics and
products support business area experienced growth from new programs, including a logistics support services contract for deployed MRAP
vehicles. The increase in the intelligence business area is primarily due to work performed on new programs and higher levels of activity on
existing geospatial programs, including the global positioning system program, and classified programs. Revenue growth related to acquisitions of
businesses in the Government segment was 5% for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same periods in the prior
year primarily due to our acquisition of a consulting, engineering, and architectural design company during our fiscal quarter ended October 31,
2007.

Commercial segment revenues declined during the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same periods in the prior year
due to reduced volume in our consulting services and information technology business area.
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Cost of Revenues. The following table summarizes changes in segment cost of revenues for the periods noted:
 
   Three Months Ended July 31  Six Months Ended July 31 

   2008  
Percent
change  2007  2008  

Percent
change  2007 

         As Restated        As Restated 
   (dollars in millions)  
Government segment cost of revenues   $2,115  16% $ 1,818  $4,081  17% $ 3,475 

As a percentage of related revenues    87.0%     86.9%  87.2%     87.2%
Commercial segment cost of revenues    93  (4)   97   185  (3)   191 

As a percentage of related revenues    75.0%     75.2%  76.4%     76.7%
Corporate and Other segment cost of revenues    (6)  (20)   (5)   (11)  (10)   (10)
            

Total cost of revenues   $2,202  15  $ 1,910  $4,255  16  $ 3,656 
            

As a percentage of total revenues    86.2%     86.0%  86.4%     86.4%

Cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 remained relatively consistent for all segments
and on a consolidated basis as compared to the same periods in the prior year.

Government segment cost of revenues as a percentage of related revenues for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 were negatively
impacted by an increased percentage of M&S revenues, which generally have lower margins as compared to labor-related revenues, and declines
in shipments of more profitable border, port and security equipment offset by slightly higher contract fees as compared to the same periods in the
prior year. The Government segment cost of revenues percentages for the three and six months ended July 31, 2007 benefited from $12 million in
recoveries of prior year indirect rate overruns while the cost of revenues percentages for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 benefited
from $4 million in recoveries of prior year indirect rate overruns. Additionally, the Government segment cost of revenues percentages for the three
and six months ended July 31, 2007 were negatively impacted by $8 million of costs associated with actions taken to remediate data security
lapses on several customer contracts whereas the cost of revenues percentages for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 were negatively
impacted by $2 million for the portion of the impact of an adverse verdict in a lawsuit involving contracts with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission
that was recorded as a reduction of revenues.

Corporate and Other segment cost of revenues for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 represents the elimination of
intersegment rent expense charged to our Government and Commercial segments on company-owned properties.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. The following table summarizes changes in SG&A expense by type of activity for the periods noted:
 
   Three Months Ended July 31  Six Months Ended July 31 

   2008  
Percent
change  2007  2008  

Percent
change  2007 

   (dollars in millions)  
General and administrative   $117  22% $ 96  $220  17% $188 

As a percentage of total revenues    4.6%     4.3%  4.5%     4.4%
Bid and proposal    39  22   32   72  22   59 

As a percentage of total revenues    1.5%     1.5%  1.4%     1.4%
Internal research and development    11  —   11   18  (14)   21 

As a percentage of total revenues    .4%     .5%  .4%     .5%
            

Total SG&A   $167  20  $ 139  $310  16  $268 
            

As a percentage of total revenues    6.5%     6.3%  6.3%     6.3%

Total SG&A increased $28 million, or 20%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and $42 million, or 16%, for the six months ended July 31,
2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year. As a percentage of revenues, SG&A for the three months ended July 31, 2008 increased
as compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to the addition of four businesses acquired since July 31, 2007 that have relatively
higher SG&A costs, including amortization expense related to intangible assets.

General and administrative expenses increased $21 million, or 22%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and $32 million, or 17%, for the six
months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year primarily due to increased cost to support growth in our
operations, severance charges related to organizational streamlining in our Commercial and Corporate and Other segments, and increased
expense resulting from the addition of four businesses
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acquired since July 31, 2007 that have relatively higher SG&A costs. In addition, we recorded $4 million of costs for the three months ended
July 31, 2008 as a result of an adverse verdict in a lawsuit involving contracts with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. The total impact on
operating income for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission matter was $6 million, with $2 million
recorded as a reduction of revenues.

Bid and proposal (B&P) expenses increased $7 million, or 22%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and $13 million, or 22%, for the six
months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year primarily due to a significant increase in B&P activities in pursuit of
an increased number of larger contracts. The level of B&P activities fluctuates depending on the timing of bidding opportunities.

Internal research and development expenses remained consistent for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and decreased $3 million, or 14%, for
the six months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year due to the timing of internal research and development
activities.

The following table summarizes changes in SG&A expense by segment for the periods noted:
 
   Three Months Ended July 31  Six Months Ended July 31 

   2008  
Percent
change  2007  2008  

Percent
change  2007 

         As Restated        As Restated 
   (dollars in millions)  
Government segment SG&A   $ 128  21% $ 106  $ 238  16% $ 206 

As a percentage of related revenues    5.3%     5.1%  5.1%     5.2%
Commercial segment SG&A    23  5   22   46  10   42 

As a percentage of related revenues    18.5%     17.1%  19.0%     16.9%
Corporate and Other segment SG&A    16  45   11   26  30   20 
            

Total SG&A   $ 167  20  $ 139  $ 310  16  $ 268 
            

As a percentage of total revenues    6.5%     6.3%  6.3%     6.3%

Government segment SG&A increased $22 million, or 21%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and $32 million, or 16%, for the six months
ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year primarily due to the reasons described above.

Commercial segment SG&A expenses for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 remained relatively consistent as compared to the same
periods in the prior year.

Corporate and Other segment SG&A expenses represent corporate costs that are unallowable under U.S. Government Cost Accounting Standards
and the net effect of various items related to operating business units that are excluded from the evaluation of a business unit’s operating
performance in the Government or Commercial segments. Corporate and Other segment SG&A increased by $5 million, or 45%, and $6 million, or
30%, for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008, respectively, as compared to the same periods in the prior year primarily due to $4 million
in costs associated with an adverse verdict in a lawsuit involving contracts with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. The total impact on operating
income for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission matter was $6 million, with $2 million recorded as
a reduction of revenues.

Operating Income. The following table summarizes changes in segment operating income for the periods noted:
 
   Three Months Ended July 31  Six Months Ended July 31 

   2008  
Percent
change  2007  2008  

Percent
change  2007 

         As Restated        As Restated 
   (dollars in millions)  
Government segment operating income   $188  11% $ 169  $363  20% $ 303 

As a percentage of related revenues    7.7%     8.1%  7.8%     7.6%
Commercial segment operating income    8  (20)   10   11  (31)   16 

As a percentage of related revenues    6.5%     7.8%  4.5%     6.4%
Corporate and Other segment operating loss    (10)  (67)   (6)   (15)  (50)   (10)
            

Total operating income   $186  8  $ 173  $359  16  $ 309 
            

As a percentage of total revenues    7.3%     7.8%  7.3%     7.3%
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Total operating income decreased as a percentage of revenues during the three months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same period in
the prior year primarily due to declines in Government segment profitability for the reasons described above. Total operating income remained
relatively consistent as a percentage of revenues for the six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year. Total
operating income was negatively impacted by $6 million in the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 as a result of an adverse verdict in a
lawsuit involving contracts with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and $8 million in the three and six months ended July 31, 2007 associated
with actions taken to remediate data security lapses on several customer contracts.

Government segment operating income decreased as a percentage of related revenues during the three months ended July 31, 2008 as compared
to the same period in the prior year primarily due to the reasons described above. Government segment operating income increased as a
percentage of related revenues during the six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to lower
SG&A expenses as a percentage of related revenues.

Commercial segment operating income decreased as a percentage of related revenues for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 as
compared to the same period in the prior year due to declines in revenues on higher costs, including $2 million in severance charges incurred
during the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 to better align the indirect cost structure with the reduced revenue base.

Corporate and Other segment operating loss increased by $4 million, or 67%, and $5 million, or 50%, for the three and six months ended July 31,
2008, respectively, as compared to the same periods in the prior year. The Corporate and Other segment operating loss was negatively impacted
by $4 million in the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 as a result of an adverse verdict in a lawsuit involving contracts with the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission.

Interest Income. Interest income decreased by $8 million, or 57%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and $14 million, or 50%, for the six
months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year due to declines in the amount of cash and cash equivalents and
interest rates on those cash and cash equivalents.

Interest Expense. Interest expense reflects interest on our outstanding debt securities and notes payable. Interest expense declined by $2 million,
or 9%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and $5 million, or 11%, for the six months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods
in the prior year due to the payment of $100 million to settle the 6.75% notes at maturity on February 1, 2008.

Other Income (Expense), Net. The components of other income (expense), net for the periods noted were as follows:
 

   
Three Months Ended

July 31   
Six Months Ended

July 31  
   2008  2007  2008  2007 
   (in millions)  
Net gains (losses) on investments, including impairment losses   $ —  $ (5) $ 3  $ (5)
Equity interest in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates    2   1   5   1 
Other    1   —   3   — 
Total other income (expense), net   $ 3  $ (4) $ 11  $ (4)

There were no impairment losses on investments for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008. We recorded impairment losses on
investments of $5 million for the three and six months ended July 31, 2007. The carrying value of our cost and equity method investments as of
July 31, 2008 was $49 million.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes as a percentage of income from continuing operations before income taxes was 40.2%
and 39.5% for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008, respectively, as compared to 37.7% and 38.9%, respectively, for the same periods in
the prior year. The higher effective tax rate for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same periods in the prior year is
primarily due to an increase in non-deductible expenses for the penalty portion of an adverse verdict in a lawsuit involving contracts with the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

Income from Continuing Operations. Income from continuing operations increased $5 million, or 5%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and
$34 million, or 20%, for the six months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year. The increase in income from
continuing operations for the three months ended July 31, 2008 is primarily a result of an increase in operating income of $13 million caused by
higher revenues and a $2 million decrease in non-operating expense offset by increases in the provision for income taxes of $10 million. The
increase in income from continuing operations for the six months ended July 31, 2008 is primarily a result of an increase in operating income of
$50 million resulting from higher revenues and relatively consistent operating margins and a $9 million decrease in non-operating expense offset
by an increase in the provision for income taxes of $25 million.
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Diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) from Continuing Operations. Diluted EPS from continuing operations increased $.02 per share, or 8%, for the
three months ended July 31, 2008 and $.09 per share, or 21%, for the six months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the
prior year. The increase for the three months ended July 31, 2008 was due to a $5 million, or 5%, increase in income from continuing operations
and a 15 million share, or 4%, decline in diluted weighted average shares outstanding. The increase for the six months ended July 31, 2008 was
due to an increase in income from continuing operations of $34 million, or 20%, and a 10 million share, or 2%, decline in diluted weighted average
shares outstanding.

Discontinued Operations. In July 2007, we completed a reorganization transaction resulting in the disposition of our 55% interest in our
consolidated majority-owned subsidiary, AMSEC LLC, in exchange for our acquisition of certain divisions and subsidiaries of AMSEC LLC. The
results of operations of AMSEC LLC (other than the divisions and subsidiaries that we acquired in the reorganization transaction) have been
reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented. The operating results of the discontinued operations prior to sale for the periods
noted were as follows:
 
   Six Months Ended July 31
   2008   2007
   (in millions)
Revenues   $   —  $ 106
Costs and expenses:         

Cost of revenues    —   96
Selling, general and administrative expenses    —   4

Income before minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries and income taxes   $ —  $ 6

In addition to the operating results of the divested portion of AMSEC LLC, our results of discontinued operations for the six months ended July 31,
2008 and 2007 included gains and losses for certain tax and litigation matters related to Telcordia Technologies, Inc. and the divested portion of
AMSEC LLC.

Net Income and Diluted EPS. Net income decreased $22 million, or 17%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 and remained consistent for
the six months ended July 31, 2008, as compared to the same periods in the prior year. The decrease in net income for the three months ended
July 31, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year reflects an increase in income from continuing operations of $5 million and a
decrease in income from discontinued operations of $27 million primarily due to a $31 million gain on sale of the divested portion of AMSEC LLC
for the three months ended July 31, 2007. Net income remained consistent for the six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same
period in the prior year due to an increase in income from continuing operations of $34 million and a decrease in income from discontinued
operations of $34 million primarily due to a $31 million gain on sale of the divested portion of AMSEC LLC. Diluted EPS decreased $.04 per share,
or 13%, for the three months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year due to a decrease in net income of $22 million
offset by a 15 million share, or 4%, decline in diluted weighted average shares outstanding. Diluted EPS increased $.01 per share, or 2%, for the
six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year due to a 10 million share, or 2%, decline in diluted weighted
average shares outstanding.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
We anticipate our principal source of liquidity for the next 12 months and beyond will be cash flows from operations. We may also borrow under our
revolving credit facility. We anticipate our principal uses of cash will be for operating expenses, capital expenditures, working capital requirements,
acquisitions, stock repurchases, and funding of pension obligations. We anticipate that our operating cash flows, existing cash and cash
equivalents and borrowing capacity under our revolving credit facility will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash requirements for at least the
next 12 months.

Cash Flows
The following table summarizes cash flow information for the periods noted:
 
   Six Months Ended July 31 
       2008          2007     
   (in millions)  
Total cash flows provided by operations   $ 242  $ 128 
Total cash flows used in investing activities    (216)   (25)
Total cash flows used in financing activities    (434)   (87)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations    4   2 

Total increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   $ (404)  $ 18 
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Cash Provided by Operations. The $114 million increase in cash flows from operations for the six months ended July 31, 2008 as compared to the
same period in the prior year is primarily due to an increase in income from continuing operations and the relative amount of payables outstanding.

Cash Used in Investing Activities. We used $216 million of cash in support of investing activities during the six months ended July 31, 2008,
including $200 million (net of cash acquired) to acquire two businesses and $25 million to purchase property, plant and equipment. We used $25
million of cash in support of investing activities during the six months ended July 31, 2007, including $23 million to purchase property, plant and
equipment.

Cash Used in Financing Activities. We used $434 million of cash in support of financing activities during the six months ended July 31, 2008,
including $416 million to repurchase shares of our stock, $110 million to redeem notes payable and long-term debt offset by $50 million in
proceeds from the sale of stock under our ESPP and the exercise of stock options and $43 million in excess tax benefits associated with stock-
based compensation. We used cash in support of financing activities of $87 million during the six months ended July 31, 2007, including $172
million to repurchase shares of our stock, offset by $55 million in proceeds from the sale of stock under our ESPP and the exercise of stock options
and $39 million in excess tax benefits associated with stock-based compensation.

Stock Repurchase Program
In December 2006, our board of directors authorized a stock repurchase program under which we could repurchase up to 40 million shares of our
common stock. In March 2008, our board approved the repurchase of additional shares, restoring the number of shares authorized to be
repurchased under the program to 40 million shares. Stock repurchases under this program may be made on the open market or in privately
negotiated transactions with third parties. Whether repurchases are made and the timing and actual number of shares repurchased depends on a
variety of factors including price, other market conditions and regulatory requirements. As of July 31, 2008, there were 25 million shares remaining
authorized for repurchase under this program.

Underfunded Pension Obligation
We sponsor a defined benefit pension plan for eligible employees of our United Kingdom subsidiary that perform services on a specific customer
contract. As of January 31, 2008, the pension plan had an underfunded projected benefit obligation of $21 million, which we expect to fund over
future years. A dispute exists with the customer over the timeframe in which this underfunded pension obligation is required to be funded under
terms of the customer contract and applicable pension regulations. The resolution of this dispute may result in an acceleration of both the funding
and expense recognition of the unrecognized actuarial loss.

Outstanding Indebtedness
Notes Payable and Long-term Debt. Our outstanding notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following:
 

   
July 31,

2008  
January 31,

2008
   (in millions)
6.25% notes due fiscal 2013   $ 549  $ 549
5.5% notes due fiscal 2034    296   296
7.125% notes due fiscal 2033    248   248
6.75% notes due fiscal 2009    —   100
Other notes payable    27   35

    1,120   1,228
Less current portion    21   130

Total   $1,099  $ 1,098

We paid $100 million to settle the 6.75% notes at maturity on February 1, 2008.

All of the notes described above contain customary restrictive covenants, including, among other things, restrictions on our ability to create liens
and enter into sale and leaseback transactions. We were in compliance with such covenants as of July 31, 2008. For additional information on our
notes payable and long-term debt, see Note 8 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008.
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Credit Facility. We have a revolving credit facility providing for $750 million in unsecured borrowing capacity at interest rates determined, at our
option, based on either LIBOR plus a margin or a defined base rate through fiscal 2013. As of July 31, 2008, $745 million of the revolving credit
facility was available, due to $5 million of outstanding standby letters of credit issued in connection with our contract with the Greek government.
The terms of the standby letters of credit require them to remain outstanding until the customer formally accepts the system pursuant to the
contract. See Note 9 of the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008
for a discussion of these items.

The facility contains various customary restrictive covenants, including financial covenants. As of July 31, 2008, we were in compliance with all
covenants under the credit facility.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have outstanding performance guarantees and cross-indemnity agreements in connection with certain of our unconsolidated joint venture
investments as described in Note 19 of the notes to consolidated financial statements in Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008. These arrangements have not had, and management does not believe it is likely that
they will in the future have, a material effect on our liquidity, capital resources, operations or financial condition.

Commitments and Contingencies
We are subject to a number of reviews, investigations, claims, lawsuits and other uncertainties related to our business. See Note 9 of the notes to
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended July 31, 2008 for a discussion of these items.

Critical Accounting Policies
Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The preparation of these financial
statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. Management evaluates these estimates and assumptions on an on-going basis. Our estimates and assumptions have
been prepared on the basis of the most current reasonably available information. The results of these estimates form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from these
estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

We have several critical accounting policies, which were described in Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, that are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and require
management’s most difficult, subjective and complex judgments. Typically, the circumstances that make these judgments complex and difficult
have to do with making estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. There were no significant changes to our critical
accounting policies during the six months ended July 31, 2008.

Effects of Inflation
Approximately 50% of our revenues are derived from cost-reimbursement type contracts, which are generally completed within one year. Bids for
longer-term FFP and T&M contracts typically include sufficient provisions for labor and other cost escalations to cover anticipated cost increases
over the period of performance. Consequently, revenues and costs have generally both increased commensurate with the economy. As a result,
net income as a percentage of total revenues has not been significantly impacted by inflation.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
During the six months ended July 31, 2008, there were no material changes in our market risk exposure. For a discussion of our market risk
associated with interest rate risk and foreign currency risk as of January 31, 2008, see “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market
Risk” in Part II, Item 7A, of our original Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 filed on March 28, 2008.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer (our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and principal financial officer
(our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer), has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act)) as of the end of the quarterly period
covered by this report, and our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission. These
disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
principal executive officer and our principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
During the year ended January 31, 2008, we began a phased implementation of a new information technology system to be used as our
accounting system. The significant majority of the implementation is currently scheduled to be completed in multiple phases through fiscal year
2010. The transition to the new information technology system includes a significant effort in the testing of the system prior to implementation,
training of employees who will be using the system and updating of our internal control process and procedures that will be impacted by the
implementation. During each phase of the implementation, an appropriate level of testing and monitoring of the financial results recorded in the
system will be conducted and our management will update the system of internal control over the impacted areas.

During the six months ended July 31, 2008, our corporate operations and two of our twenty operating business units (representing approximately
10% of total consolidated revenues on a full year basis) used the new system. Accordingly, our system of internal control over financial reporting
for the corporate operations and impacted business units has been updated. There were no additional operations that migrated to the new system
during the six months ended July 31, 2008.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred in the quarterly period covered by this report that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.
Telkom South Africa
As previously disclosed in our original Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 filed on March 28, 2008 and in our
original Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 30, 2008 filed on June 4, 2008, after finding that Telkom South Africa
repudiated the contract, the arbitrator is in the process of determining the damages to be recovered by Telcordia Technologies, Inc. (Telcordia), a
former subsidiary of ours. Due to the scope and complexity of disputed technical issues, the arbitrator appointed a third party expert to provide an
independent opinion. At a hearing in April 2008, the arbitrator determined the technical issues that the independent technical expert would be
tasked to analyze. A hearing before the third party expert is scheduled for November 2008 in South Africa. In addition, a hearing before the
arbitrator is scheduled for October 2008 in South Africa to address Telkom South Africa’s motion to amend its statement of defense and its motion
to dismiss a portion of Telcordia’s damage claims for failure to provide adequate financial documentation. Given the current schedule, the damage
phase of the arbitration is unlikely to be completed until after January 31, 2009.

Pursuant to the definitive stock purchase agreement for the sale of Telcordia, we are entitled to receive all of the proceeds, net of the tax liability
incurred by Telcordia, from any judgment or settlement. Due to the complex nature of the legal and factual issues involved in the dispute, the
damages that Telcordia will ultimately be awarded in the second phase of arbitration, and therefore the amounts we will be entitled to receive, net
of the tax liability incurred by Telcordia, are not presently determinable. We do not have any assets or liabilities recorded related to this contract
and related legal proceedings as of July 31, 2008.

Nuclear Regulatory Commission
As previously disclosed in our original Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 30, 2008 filed on June 4, 2008, the U.S.
Department of Justice filed a lawsuit against us in September 2004 in the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia alleging civil False Claims
Act violations and breach of contract by us on two contracts that we had with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC). The complaint alleges
that our performance of several subcontracts on separate Department of Energy (DOE) programs, the participation of an employee of ours in an
industry trade association and certain other alleged relationships created organizational conflicts of interest under the two NRC contracts. We
dispute that the work performed on the DOE programs and the alleged relationships raised by the government created organizational conflicts of
interest. In July 2008, the trial of the case commenced and the jury found in favor of the government on the breach of contract and two False
Claims Act counts. The jury awarded a nominal amount of $78 in damages for breach of contract and $2 million in damages for the False Claims
Act claims. Under the False Claims Act, the judge may treble the damages. In addition, the judge can award between $5,500 and $11,000 in
penalties for each of the 77 false statements or false claims the jury found in the case. The judge has not yet entered the judgment. We intend to
file post-trial motions challenging any judgment entered. We also intend to file an appeal, if necessary. We have recorded a liability of $7 million for
this matter as of July 31, 2008.

Other
We are routinely subject to investigations and reviews relating to compliance with various laws and regulations with respect to our role as a
contractor to agencies and departments of the U.S. Government and in connection with performing services in countries outside of the United
States. Such matters can lead to criminal, civil or administrative proceedings and we could be faced with penalties, fines, repayments or
compensatory damages. Adverse findings could also have a material adverse effect on us because of our reliance on government contracts.
Although we can give no assurance, based upon management’s evaluation of current matters that are subject to U.S. Government investigations
of which we are aware and based on management’s current understanding of the facts, we do not believe that the outcome of any such matter
would have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows or our ability to conduct business.

We are also involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct of our business, none of which, in the opinion of our
management, based upon current information, will likely have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations,
cash flows or our ability to conduct business.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.
There were no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in our original Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2008 filed on March 28, 2008.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
 

(c) Purchases of Equity Securities by the Company

In December 2006, our board of directors authorized a stock repurchase program under which we could repurchase up to 40 million shares of our
common stock as part of our overall strategy for capital allocation. In March 2008, our board approved the repurchase of additional shares,
restoring the number of shares authorized to be repurchased under the program to 40 million shares. Stock repurchases under this program may
be made on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions with third parties. Whether repurchases are made and the timing and actual
number of shares repurchased will depend on a variety of factors including price, other market conditions and regulatory requirements.

The following table presents repurchases of our stock during the quarter ended July 31, 2008:
 

Period   

(a)
Total Number of

Shares (or
Units)

Purchased (1)  

(b)
Average Price

Paid per Share
(or Unit)  

(c)
Total Number of

Shares (or
Units) Purchased as

Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

or Programs (2)  

(d)
Maximum Number

(or Approximate
Dollar Value) of

Shares (or Units)
that May Yet Be

Purchased Under
the Plans or

Programs
May 1, 2008 – May 31, 2008   6,047,828  $ 19.49  5,635,900  25,345,100
June 1, 2008 – June 30, 2008   2,000,317   20.60  818,100  24,527,000
July 1, 2008 – July 31, 2008   558,026   20.60  —  24,527,000
            
Total   8,606,171   19.82  6,454,000   

            
 
(1) Includes shares purchased as follows:
 

   May  June  July
Under publicly announced plans or programs   5,635,900  818,100  —
Upon surrender by stockholders of previously owned shares in payment of the exercise price

of non-qualified stock options   373,686  1,165,037  556,194
Upon surrender by stockholders of previously owned shares to satisfy statutory tax

withholding obligations related to vesting of stock awards   38,242  17,180  1,832
Total   6,047,828  2,000,317  558,026

 
(2) Stock repurchase program under which we could repurchase up to 40 million shares of our common stock was publicly announced on

December 12, 2006. In March 2008, our board approved the repurchase of additional shares, restoring the number of shares authorized to be
repurchased under the program to 40 million shares.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
 

(a) The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company was held on May 30, 2008.
 

(b) All of the directors nominated by management in the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statement were elected and no solicitation in opposition to
management’s nominees was made.
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(c) At the Annual Meeting, the stockholders voted on the following matters:
 

 (i) the election of the following directors by the votes set forth below:
 

   Number of Votes

Director   For   
Withhold
Authority

France A. Córdova   1,436,336,110  111,732,269
Kenneth C. Dahlberg   1,379,347,066  168,721,315
Wolfgang H. Demisch   1,435,474,575  112,593,805
Jere A. Drummond   1,442,456,679  105,611,702
John J. Hamre   1,448,713,770  99,354,610
Miriam E. John   1,443,274,441  104,793,937
Anita K. Jones   1,446,580,949  101,487,430
John P. Jumper   1,444,533,472  103,534,908
Harry M.J. Kraemer, Jr.   1,440,415,258  107,653,122
Edward J. Sanderson, Jr.   1,440,291,581  107,776,799
Louis A. Simpson   1,444,899,296  103,169,082
A. Thomas Young   1,420,425,562  127,642,817

 
 

     For   Against   Abstain
(ii)     

 
a proposal to approve an amendment to the Company’s 2006
Equity Incentive Plan   

1,319,442,104
  

180,789,041
  

47,837,231

 
 

     For   Against   Abstain
(iii)    

 

a proposal ratifying the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the
fiscal year ending January 31, 2009   

1,467,875,510

  

60,509,538

  

19,683,329

 

(d) Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.
On August 27, 2008, the Human Resources and Compensation Committee of our board of directors approved modifications to our standard form
of Severance Protection Agreement for executive officers. The modified form of Severance Protection Agreement is in substantially the same form
and contains substantially similar terms as the existing agreements, except that we have reduced the continuation period for certain benefits from
36 months to 30 months and made modifications to comply with new regulations under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. No new
benefits were added to the agreement.

We intend to deliver notice to our executive officers prior to October 1, 2008 of our intent not to renew the existing Severance Protection
Agreements. As a result, these agreements will expire according to their terms on December 31, 2008. We intend to enter into new Severance
Protection Agreements with our executive officers in the form filed as Exhibit 10.1 to this report which will replace the existing agreements effective
as of December 31, 2008.

Item 6. Exhibits.
 
10.1  Form of Severance Protection Agreement

31.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: September 3, 2008
 

SAIC, Inc.

/S/    MARK W. SOPP        
 

Mark W. Sopp
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and

as a duly authorized officer
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Exhibit 10.1

FORM OF
SEVERANCE PROTECTION AGREEMENT

SEVERANCE PROTECTION AGREEMENT dated             ,      2008, by and between SAIC, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and             
(the “Executive”).

PURPOSE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) recognizes that the possibility of a Change in Control (as hereinafter defined) of the Company exists
and that the threat or occurrence of a Change in Control may result in the distraction of its key management personnel because of the uncertainties inherent in
such a situation.

The Board has determined that it is essential and in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders to retain the services of the Executive in the
event of the threat or occurrence of a Change in Control and to ensure the Executive’s continued dedication and efforts in such event without undue concern for
the Executive’s personal financial and employment security.

In order to induce the Executive to remain in the employ of the Company, particularly in the event of the threat or occurrence of a Change in Control, the
Company desires to enter into this Agreement to provide the Executive with certain benefits in the event the Executive’s employment is terminated as a result of,
or in connection with, a Change in Control.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective agreements of the parties contained herein, it is agreed as follows:

SECTION 1. Definitions.

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:

“Accrued Compensation” means an amount which includes all amounts earned or accrued by the Executive through and including the Termination Date
but not paid to the Executive on or prior to such date, including (a) all base salary, (b) reimbursement for all reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the
Executive on behalf of the Company during the period ending on the Termination Date, (c) all vacation pay and (d) all bonuses and incentive compensation (other
than the Pro Rata Bonus).

“Base Salary Amount” means the greater of the Executive’s annual base salary (a) at the rate in effect on the Termination Date and (b) at the highest rate in
effect at any time during the 180-day period prior to a Change in Control, and will include all amounts of the Executive’s base salary that are deferred under any
qualified or non-qualified employee benefit plan of the Company or any other agreement or arrangement.

“Beneficial Owner” has the meaning as used in Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act. The terms “Beneficially Owned” and
“Beneficial Ownership” each have a correlative meaning.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.



“Bonus Amount” means the greater of (a) the annual bonus paid or payable to the Executive pursuant to any annual bonus or incentive plan maintained by
the Company in respect of the fiscal year ending immediately prior to the fiscal year in which the Termination Date occurs, (b) the average of the annual bonus
paid or payable to the Executive pursuant to any annual bonus or incentive plan maintained by the Company in respect of each of the three fiscal years ending
immediately prior to the fiscal year in which the Termination Date occurs (or, if higher, ending in respect of each of the three fiscal years ending immediately
prior to the year in which the Change in Control occurs) or (c) in the event that the Executive was not employed by the Company for the entire fiscal year ending
immediately prior to the fiscal year in which the Termination Date occurs, the annual target bonus established and payable to the Executive pursuant to any annual
bonus or incentive plan maintained by the Company in respect of the fiscal year ending during the fiscal year in which the Termination Date occurs. Bonus
Amount includes only the short-term incentive portion of the annual bonus and does not include restricted stock awards, options or other long-term incentive
compensation awarded to the Executive.

“Cause” for the termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company will be deemed to exist if (a) the Executive has been convicted for
committing an act of fraud, embezzlement, theft or other act constituting a felony (other than traffic related offenses or as a result of vicarious liability), (b) the
Executive willfully engages in illegal conduct or gross misconduct that is significantly injurious to the Company; however, no act or failure to act, on the
Executive’s part shall be considered “willful” unless done or omitted to be done, by the Executive not in good faith and without reasonable belief that his or her
action or omission was in the best interest of the Company or (c) failure to perform his or her duties in a reasonably satisfactory manner after the receipt of a
notice from the Company detailing such failure if the failure is incapable of cure, and if the failure is capable of cure, upon the failure to cure such failure within
30 days of such notice or upon its recurrence.

“Change in Control” of the Company means, and shall be deemed to have occurred upon, any of the following events:

(a) The acquisition by any Person of beneficial ownership (as defined in Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange
Act) of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the outstanding voting power; provided, however, that the following acquisitions shall not constitute a Change in
Control for purposes of this subparagraph (a): (A) any acquisition directly from the Company; (B) any acquisition by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries;
(C) any acquisition by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; or (D) any acquisition by
any corporation pursuant to a transaction which complies with clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of subparagraph (c) below; or

(b) Individuals who, as of the date of this Agreement, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of
the Board; provided, however, that any individual who becomes a director of the Company subsequent to the date of this Agreement and whose election, or whose
nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, to the Board was either (i) approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the
Incumbent Board or (ii) recommended by a nominating committee comprised entirely of directors who are then Incumbent Board members shall be considered as
though such
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individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any such individual whose initial assumption of office occurs as a result of
either an actual or threatened election contest (as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act), other
actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents or an actual or threatened tender offer; or

(c) Consummation of a reorganization, merger, or consolidation or sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company (a
“Business Combination”), in each case unless following such Business Combination, (i) all or substantially all of the Persons who were the Beneficial Owners,
respectively, of the outstanding shares and outstanding voting securities immediately prior to such Business Combination own, directly or indirectly, more than
fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of the Company,
as the case may be, of the entity resulting from the Business Combination (including, without limitation, an entity which as a result of such transaction owns the
Company or all or substantially all of the Company’s assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries) in substantially the same proportions as their
ownership, immediately prior to such Business Combination, of the outstanding voting securities (provided, however, that for purposes of this clause (i) any
shares of common stock or voting securities of such resulting entity received by such Beneficial Owners in such Business Combination other than as the result of
such Beneficial Owners’ ownership of outstanding shares or outstanding voting securities immediately prior to such Business Combination shall not be
considered to be owned by such Beneficial Owners for the purposes of calculating their percentage of ownership of the outstanding common stock and voting
power of the resulting entity); (ii) no Person (excluding any entity resulting from such Business Combination or any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the
Company or such entity resulting from the Business Combination) beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the combined
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of such entity resulting from the Business Combination unless such Person owned twenty-five percent
(25%) or more of the outstanding shares or outstanding voting securities immediately prior to the Business Combination; and (iii) at least a majority of the
members of the Board of the entity resulting from such Business Combination were members of the Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial
agreement, or the action of the Board, providing for such Business Combination; or

(d) Approval by the Company’s stockholders of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

For purposes of clause (c), any Person who acquires outstanding voting securities of the entity resulting from the Business Combination by virtue of
ownership, prior to such Business Combination, of outstanding voting securities of both the Company and the entity or entities with which the Company is
combined shall be treated as two Persons after the Business Combination, who shall be treated as owning outstanding voting securities of the entity resulting from
the Business Combination by virtue of ownership, prior to such Business Combination of, respectively, outstanding voting securities of the Company, and of the
entity or entities with which the Company is combined.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
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“Company” means SAIC, Inc., a Delaware corporation, provided that in recognition of the fact that the Executive may be employed by Science
Applications International Corporation, a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“SAIC”), or by another direct or indirect
Subsidiary of SAIC, Inc., the term “Company” when referring to the employment relationship and the compensation or benefits related thereto shall include the
employer of Executive as the context requires.

“Continuation Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(b)(iii).

“Disability” means the status of disability determined conclusively by the Company based upon certification of disability by the Social Security
Administration or upon such other proof as the Company may reasonably require, effective upon receipt of such certification or other proof by the Company.

“Full Release” means a written release, timely executed so that it is fully effective as of the date of payment pursuant to Section 3.1(b)(ii), in a form
satisfactory to the Company (and similar to the Agreement set forth in Exhibit A) pursuant to which the Executive fully and completely releases the Company
from all claims that the Executive may have against the Company (other than any claims that may or have arisen under this Agreement).

“Good Reason” means the occurrence of any of the events or conditions described in clauses (a) through (g) hereof, without the Executive’s prior written
consent:

(a)(i) any material adverse change in the Executive’s authority, duties or responsibilities (including reporting responsibilities) from the Executive’s
authority, duties or responsibilities as in effect at any time within 180 days preceding the date of the Change in Control or at any time thereafter, or (ii) in the case
of an Executive who is an executive officer of the Company a significant portion of whose responsibilities relate to the Company’s status as a public company, the
failure of such Executive to continue to serve as an executive officer of a public company, in each case except in connection with the termination of the
Executive’s employment for Disability, Cause, as a result of the Executive’s death or by the Executive other than for Good Reason;

(b) a material reduction in Executive’s base salary or any failure to pay the Executive any cash compensation to which the Executive is entitled within 15
days after the date when due;

(c) the imposition of a requirement that the Executive be based (i) at any place outside a 50-mile radius from the Executive’s principal place of employment
immediately prior to the Change in Control or (ii) at any location other than the Company’s corporate headquarters or, if applicable, the headquarters of the
business unit by which he or she was employed immediately prior to the Change in Control, except, in each case, for reasonably required travel on Company
business which is not materially greater in frequency or duration than prior to the Change in Control;

(d) any material breach by the Company of any provision of this Agreement;

(e) any purported termination of the Executive’s employment for Cause by the Company which does not comply with the terms of this Agreement; or
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(f) the failure of the Company to obtain, as contemplated in Section 7, an agreement, reasonably satisfactory to the Executive, from any Successor to
assume and agree to perform this Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, no termination will be deemed to be for Good Reason hereunder unless (i) the Executive
provides written notice to the Company identifying the applicable event or condition within 90 days of the occurrence of the event or the initial existence of the
condition, and (ii) the Company fails to remedy the event or condition within a period of 30 days following such notice.

“Notice of Termination” means a written notice from the Company or the Executive of the termination of the Executive’s employment which indicates the
specific termination provision in this Agreement relied upon and which sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for
termination of the Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated.

“Person” has the meaning as defined in Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Exchange Act and used in Section 13(d) or 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act,
and will include any “group” as such term is used in such sections.

“Pro Rata Bonus” means an amount equal to the Bonus Amount multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days elapsed in the then
fiscal year through and including the Termination Date and the denominator of which is 365.

“Securities Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“Subsidiary” means any corporation with respect to which another specified corporation has the power under ordinary circumstances to vote or direct the
voting of sufficient securities to elect a majority of the directors.

“Successor” means a corporation or other entity acquiring all or substantially all the assets and business of the Company, whether by operation of law, by
assignment or otherwise.

“Termination Date” means (a) in the case of the Executive’s death, the Executive’s date of death, (b) in the case of the termination of the Executive’s
employment with the Company by the Executive for Good Reason, five days after the date the Notice of Termination is received by the Company, and (c) in all
other cases, the date specified in the Notice of Termination; provided that if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause or due to
Disability, the date specified in the Notice of Termination will be at least 30 days after the date the Notice of Termination is given to the Executive.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, an Executive’s employment shall not be considered to have terminated unless the executive has experienced a
“separation from service,” as defined in Code Section 409A and the regulations thereunder.
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SECTION 2. Term of Agreement.

The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) will commence at 11:59 p.m. on December 31, 2008, and will continue in effect until December 31, 2009;
provided that on December 31, 2009 and each anniversary of such date thereafter, the Term shall automatically be extended for one additional year unless, not
later than October 1 of such year, the Company or the Executive shall have given notice not to extend the Term; and further provided that in the event a Change in
Control occurs during the Term, the Term will be extended to the date 24 months after the date of the occurrence of such Change in Control.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to Section 3.2, the Term shall be deemed to have immediately expired without any further action and this
Agreement will immediately terminate and be of no further effect if any of the following events occurs prior to a Change in Control:

(a) the Executive’s employment with the Company is terminated (whether by the Company or the Executive) for any reason;

(b) the Executive’s employment is not terminated but there is a change in his or her status, position or responsibilities (including reporting responsibilities)
from that which applied to Executive on the date of this Agreement; or

(c) the Executive reaches the mandatory retirement age applicable to the Company’s executive officers under any stated policy of the Company, as may be
adopted and revised from time to time by the Board.

SECTION 3. Termination of Employment.

3.1 If, during the Term, the Executive’s employment with the Company is terminated within 24 months following a Change in Control, the Executive will
be entitled to the following compensation and benefits:

(a) If the Executive’s employment with the Company is terminated (i) by the Company for Cause or Disability, (ii) by reason of the Executive’s death
or (iii) by the Executive other than for Good Reason, the Company will pay to the Executive the Accrued Compensation and, if such termination is by the
Company for Disability or by reason of the Executive’s death, a Pro Rata Bonus.

(b) If the Executive’s employment with the Company is terminated (whether by the Company or the Executive) for any reason other than as specified
in Section 3.1(a), the Executive will be entitled to the following:

(i) the Company will pay the Executive all Accrued Compensation and a Pro Rata Bonus;

(ii) subject to the Executive providing the Company with a Full Release, the Company will pay the Executive as severance pay, and in lieu of
any further compensation for periods subsequent to the Termination Date, in a single payment an amount in cash equal to two and one-half
(2 1/2) times the sum of (A) the Base Salary Amount and (B) the Bonus Amount;

 
6



(iii) subject to the Executive providing the Company with a Full Release and complying with his or her obligations under Section 6, the
Company will, for a period of 30 months (the “Continuation Period”), at its expense provide to the Executive and the Executive’s dependents and
beneficiaries the same or equivalent life insurance, disability, medical, dental, hospitalization, financial counseling and tax consulting benefits (the
“Continuation Period Benefits”) provided to other similarly situated executives who continue in the employ of the Company during the Continuation
Period (“similarly situated executives”). The obligations of the Company to provide the Executive and the Executive’s dependents and beneficiaries
with the Continuation Period Benefits shall not restrict or limit the Company’s right to terminate or modify the benefits made available by the
Company to its similarly situated executives or other employees and following any such termination or modification, the Continuation Period
Benefits that Executive (and the Executive’s dependents and beneficiaries) shall be entitled to receive shall be so terminated or modified. The
Company’s obligation hereunder with respect to the foregoing benefits will be limited to the extent that the Executive obtains any such benefits
pursuant to a subsequent employer’s benefit plans, in which case the Company may reduce the coverage of any benefits it is required to provide the
Executive hereunder as long as the coverages and benefits of the combined benefit plans are no less favorable to the Executive than the coverages
and benefits required to be provided hereunder. This Section 3.1(b)(iii) will not be interpreted so as to limit any benefits to which the Executive or
the Executive’s dependents or beneficiaries may be entitled under any of the Company’s employee benefit plans, programs or practices following the
Executive’s termination of employment;

(iv) the Company shall provide the Executive with outplacement services suitable to the Executive’s position for a period of 12 months or, if
earlier, until the first acceptance by the Executive of an offer of employment; and

(v) such other acceleration of vesting and other benefits provided in other Company plans or agreements regarding options to purchase
Company stock, restricted stock, deferral of stock or other equity compensation awards granted to or otherwise applicable to Executive.

The benefits set forth in subsections (iii) and (iv), above, shall be subject to the following conditions and restrictions: (1) the payment or provision of a
benefit in any particular year shall not (except as may be provided in the medical, dental and hospitalization plans in which the Executive participates) affect the
benefits to be provided in any other year, (2) to the extent the Executive is entitled to reimbursement of any expenses, the reimbursement shall be made no later
than the Executive’s taxable year following the taxable year in which the expense was incurred, and (3) no right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits may be
subject to liquidation or exchange for any other benefit.

(c) The amounts provided for in Section 3.1(a) and Sections 3.1(b)(i) and (ii) will be paid in a single lump sum cash payment by the Company to the
Executive within five days after the Termination Date.
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(d) The Executive will not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for in this Agreement by seeking other employment or otherwise,
and no such payment will be offset or reduced by the amount of any compensation or benefits provided to the Executive in any subsequent employment, except as
specifically provided in Section 3.1(b)(iii) and 3.1(b)(iv).

3.2 Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if, within the 30 days immediately preceding a Change in Control, (i) the Executive’s
employment is terminated (whether by the Company or the Executive) for any reason other than as specified in Section 3.1(a), or (ii) (A) there is a material
adverse change in the Executive’s status, position or responsibilities (including reporting responsibilities) from that which applied to Executive on the date of this
Agreement, and (B) the Executive’s employment with the Company is subsequently terminated within 24 months following a Change in Control (whether by the
Company or the Executive) for any reason other than as specified in Section 3.1(a), the Executive shall be entitled to receive the benefits provided in
Section 3.1(b), provided that the amounts provided for in Sections 3.1(b)(i) and (ii) will be paid in a single lump sum cash payment by the Company to the
Executive within five days after the later of the Termination Date or the Change in Control.

3.3 Except as otherwise noted herein, the compensation to be paid to the Executive pursuant to Sections 3.1(a), 3.1(b)(i) and 3.1(b)(ii) of this Agreement
(whether by reason of Section 3.1(c) or Section 3.2) will be in lieu of any similar severance or termination compensation (i.e., compensation based directly on the
Executive’s annual salary or annual salary and bonus) to which the Executive may be entitled under any other Company severance or termination agreement,
plan, program, policy, practice or arrangement. With respect to any other compensation and benefit to be paid or provided to the Executive pursuant to this
Section 3, the Executive will have the right to receive such compensation or benefit as herein provided or, if determined by the Executive to be more
advantageous to the Executive, similar compensation or benefits to which the Executive may be entitled under any other Company severance or termination
agreement, plan, program, policy, practice or arrangement. The Executive’s entitlement to any compensation or benefits of a type not provided in this Agreement
will be determined in accordance with the Company’s employee benefit plans and other applicable programs, policies and practices as in effect from time to time.

SECTION 4. Notice of Termination. Following a Change in Control, any purported termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company will be
communicated by a Notice of Termination to the Executive. For purposes of this Agreement, no such purported termination will be effective without such Notice
of Termination.

SECTION 5. Excise Tax Adjustments.

5.1 In the event Executive becomes entitled to receive the benefits provided pursuant to Sections 3.1(b) or 3.2 herein, and the Company determines that
such benefits (the “Total Payments”) will be subject to the tax (the “Excise Tax”) imposed by Section 4999 of the Code, or any similar tax that may hereafter be
imposed, the Company shall compute the “Net After-Tax Amount,” and the “Reduced Amount,” and shall adjust the Total Payments as described below. The Net
After-Tax Amount shall mean the present value of all amounts payable to the Executive hereunder, net of all federal income, excise and employment taxes
imposed on the Executive by reason of such payments. The Reduced Amount shall mean the largest aggregate amount of the Total Payments that if paid to the
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Executive would result in the Executive receiving a Net After- Tax Amount that is equal to or greater than the Net After-Tax Amount that the Executive would
have received if the Total Payments had been made. If the Company determines that there is a Reduced Amount, the Total Payments will be reduced to the
Reduced Amount. Such reduction shall be made by the Company with respect to benefits in the order and in the amounts suggested by the Executive, except to
the extent that the Company determines that a different reduction or set of reductions would significantly reduce the costs or administrative burdens of the
Company.

5.2 For purposes of determining whether the Total Payments will be subject to the Excise Tax and the amounts of such Excise Tax and for purposes of
determining the Reduced Amount and the Net After-Tax Amount:

(a) Any other payments or benefits received or to be received by the Executive in connection with a Change in Control of the Company or the
Executive’s termination of employment (whether pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other plan, arrangement, or agreement with the Company,
or with any individual, entity, or group of individuals or entities (individually and collectively referred to in this subsection (a) as “Persons”) whose actions
result in a change in control of the Company or any Person affiliated with the Company or such Persons) shall be treated as “parachute payments” within
the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2) of the Code, and all “excess parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(1) of the Code shall be
treated as subject to the Excise Tax, unless in the opinion of a tax advisor selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the Executive (“Tax
Counsel”), such other payments or benefits (in whole or in part) should be treated by the courts as representing reasonable compensation for services
actually rendered (within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(4)(B) of the Code), or otherwise not subject to the Excise Tax;

(b) The amount of the Total Payments that shall be treated as subject to the Excise Tax shall be equal to the lesser of (i) the total amount of the Total
Payments; or (ii) the amount of excess parachute payments within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(1) of the Code (after applying clause (a) above);

(c) In the event that the Executive disputes any calculation or determination made by the Company, the matter shall be determined by Tax Counsel,
the fees and expenses of which shall be borne solely by the Company; and

(d) The Executive shall be deemed to pay federal income taxes at the highest marginal rate of federal income taxation in the calendar year in which
the Gross-Up Payment is to be made, and state and local income taxes at the highest marginal rate of taxation in the state and locality of the Executive’s
residence on the effective date of employment, net of the maximum reduction in federal income taxes which could be obtained from deduction of such state
and local taxes, taking into account the reduction in itemized deduction under Section 68 of the Code.
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SECTION 6. Covenants of the Executive. During the Continuation Period following any Change in Control pursuant to which the Executive receives the
benefits pursuant to Section 3.1(b)(iii), the Executive covenants and agrees as follows:

(a) the Executive agrees to comply with his or her obligations under the Inventions, Copyright and Confidentiality Agreement that he or she entered
into with the Company; and

(b) the Executive acknowledges that the Executive has knowledge of confidential and proprietary information concerning the current salary, benefits,
skills, and capabilities of Company employees and that it would be improper for the Executive to use such Company proprietary information in any manner
adverse to the Company’s interests. The Executive agrees that he or she will not recruit or solicit for employment, directly or indirectly, any employee of
the Company during the Continuation Period.

SECTION 7. Successors; Binding Agreement.

This Agreement will be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the Company and its Successors, and the Company will require any Successors to
expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such
succession or assignment had taken place. Neither this Agreement nor any right or interest hereunder will be assignable or transferable by the Executive or by the
Executive’s beneficiaries or legal representatives, except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be
enforceable by the Executive’s legal representatives.

SECTION 8. Fees and Expenses.

The Company will pay as they become due all legal fees and related expenses (including the costs of experts) incurred by the Executive, in good faith, in
(a) contesting or disputing, any such termination of employment and (b) seeking to obtain or enforce any right or benefit provided by this Agreement or by any
other plan or arrangement maintained by the Company under which the Executive is or may be entitled to receive benefits. If the dispute is resolved by a final
decision of an arbitrator pursuant to Section 15 in the favor of the Company, the Executive shall reimburse the Company for all such legal fees and related
expenses (including costs of experts) paid by the Company on behalf of the Executive.

SECTION 9. Notice.

For the purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications provided for in the Agreement (including the Notice of Termination) will be in
writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when personally delivered or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to
the respective addresses last given by each party to the other, provided that all notices to the Company will be directed to the attention of the Board with a copy to
the Secretary of the Company. All notices and communications will be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery thereof or on the third business day
after the mailing thereof, except that notice of change of address will be effective only upon receipt.
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SECTION 10. Dispute Concerning Termination.

If prior to the Date of Termination (as determined without regard to this Section 10), the party receiving the Notice of Termination notifies the other party
that a dispute exists concerning the termination, the Date of Termination shall be extended until the earlier of (i) the date on which the Term ends or (ii) the date
on which the dispute is finally resolved, either by mutual written agreement of the parties or by a final judgment, order or decree of an arbitrator or a court of
competent jurisdiction (which is not appealable or with respect to which the time for appeal therefrom has expired and no appeal has been perfected); provided,
however, that the Date of Termination shall be extended by a notice of dispute given by the Executive only if such notice is given in good faith and the Executive
pursues the resolution of such dispute with reasonable diligence.

SECTION 11. Compensation During Dispute.

If a purported termination occurs following a Change in Control and during the Term and the Date of Termination is extended in accordance with
Section 10 hereof, the Company shall continue to pay the Executive the full compensation in effect when the notice giving rise to the dispute was given
(including, but not limited to, salary) and continue the Executive as a participant in all compensation, benefit and insurance plans in which the Executive was
participating when the Notice of Termination was given, until the Date of Termination, as determined in accordance with Section 10 hereof. Amounts paid under
this Section 11 are in addition to all other amounts due under this Agreement and shall not be offset against or reduce any other amounts due under this
Agreement or otherwise.

SECTION 12. Nonexclusivity of Rights.

Nothing in this Agreement will prevent or limit the Executive’s continuing or future participation in any benefit, bonus, incentive or other plan or program
provided by the Company for which the Executive may qualify, nor will anything herein limit or reduce such rights as the Executive may have under any other
agreements with the Company (except for any severance or termination agreement). Amounts which are vested benefits or which the Executive is otherwise
entitled to receive under any plan or program of the Company will be payable in accordance with such plan or program, except as specifically modified by this
Agreement.

SECTION 13. No Set-Off.

The Company’s obligation to make the payments provided for in this Agreement and otherwise to perform its obligations hereunder will not be affected by
any circumstances, including any right of set-off, counterclaim, recoupment, defense or other right which the Company may have against the Executive or others.

SECTION 14. Miscellaneous.

No provision of this Agreement may be modified, waived or discharged unless such waiver, modification or discharge is agreed to in writing and signed by
the Executive and the Company. No waiver by either party hereto at any time of any breach by the other party hereto of, or compliance with, any condition or
provision of this Agreement to be performed by such other party will be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the same or at any
prior or subsequent time. No agreement or representation, oral or otherwise, express or implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof has been made by either
party which is not expressly set forth in this Agreement.
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SECTION 15. Governing Law and Binding Arbitration.

This Agreement will be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to the conflict
of laws principles thereof. All disputes relating to this Agreement, including its enforceability, shall be resolved by final and binding arbitration before an
arbitrator appointed by the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service (JAMS), in accordance with the rules and procedures of arbitration under the Company’s
Dispute Resolution Program, attached hereto as Exhibit B, with the arbitration to be held in San Diego, California. Judgment upon the award may be entered in
any court having jurisdiction thereof.

SECTION 16. Severability.

The provisions of this Agreement will be deemed severable and the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision will not affect the validity or
enforceability of the other provisions hereof.

SECTION 17. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior agreements, if any, understandings and arrangements,
oral or written, between the parties hereto with respect to severance protection in connection with a Change in Control. To the extent that SAIC and the Executive
have previously entered into a Severance Protection Agreement dated prior to the date hereof in substantially similar form as this Agreement (the “Prior
Agreement”), the parties acknowledge and agree that, pursuant to notice duly delivered by SAIC and received by the Executive, the term of the Prior Agreement
shall expire effective 11:59 p.m. on December 31, 2008, and the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall control effective 11:59 p.m. on December 31, 2008.

SECTION 18. Code Section 409A.

It is intended that any amounts payable under this Agreement shall either be exempt from or comply with Section 409A of the Code (including the
Treasury regulations and other published guidance relating thereto) (“Code Section 409A”) so as not to subject the Executive to payment of any interest or
additional tax imposed under Code Section 409A. To the extent that any amount payable under this Agreement would trigger the additional tax, penalty or interest
imposed by Code Section 409A, this Agreement shall be modified to avoid such additional tax, penalty or interest yet preserve (to the nearest extent reasonably
possible) the intended benefit payable to the Executive.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement as of the date first above written.
 

SAIC, INC.

  
Kenneth C. Dahlberg
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

[Executive’s Name]

  
[Executive’s Signature]
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Exhibit A

RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS AND POTENTIAL CLAIMS

1. This Release of All Claims and Potential Claims (“Release”) is entered into by and between                          (“            ”) and SAIC, Inc. (hereinafter
“SAIC”).                  and SAIC have previously entered into a Severance Protection Agreement dated              (“Severance Agreement”). In consideration of the
promises made herein and the consideration due              under the Severance Agreement, this Release is entered into between the parties.

2.(a) The purposes of this Release is to settle completely and release SAIC, its individual and/or collective officers, directors, stockholders, agents, parent
companies, subsidiaries, affiliates, predecessors, successors, assigns, employees (including all former employees, officers, directors, stockholders and/or agents),
attorneys, representatives and employee benefit programs (including the trustees, administrators, fiduciaries and insurers of such programs) (referred to
collectively as “Releasees”) in a final and binding manner from every claim and potential claim for relief, cause of action and liability of any and every kind,
nature and character whatsoever, known or unknown, that              has or may have against Releasees arising out of, relating to or resulting from any events
occurring prior to the execution of this Release, including but not limited to any claims and potential claims for relief, causes of action and liabilities arising out
of, relating to or resulting from the employment relationship between              and SAIC and its subsidiaries, affiliates and predecessors, and/or the termination of
that relationship including any and all claims and rights under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, and any personal gain with respect to any claim
arising under the qui tam provisions of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. 3730, but excluding any rights or benefits to which              is entitled under the Severance
Agreement.

(b) This is a compromise settlement of all such claims and potential claims, known or unknown, and therefore this Release does not constitute either
an admission of liability on the part of              and SAIC or an admission, directly or by implication, that              and/or SAIC, its subsidiaries, affiliates or
predecessors, have violated any law, rule, regulation, contractual right or any other duty or obligation. The parties hereto specifically deny that they have
violated any law, rule, regulation, contractual right or any other duty or obligation.

(c) This Release is entered into freely and voluntarily by              and SAIC solely to avoid further costs, risks and hazards of litigation and to settle
all claims and potential claims and disputes, known or unknown, in a final and binding manner.

3. For and in consideration of the promises and covenants made by              to SAIC and SAIC to             , contained herein,              and SAIC have agreed
and do agree as follows:

(a)              waives, releases and forever discharges Releasees from any claims and potential claims for relief, causes of action and liabilities, known
or unknown, that [he/she] has or may have against Releasees arising out of, relating to or resulting from any events occurring prior to the execution of this
Release, including but not limited to any claims and potential claims for
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relief, causes of action and liabilities of any and every kind, nature and character whatsoever, known or unknown, arising out of, relating to or resulting
from the employment relationship between              and SAIC and its subsidiaries, affiliates and predecessors, and the termination of that relationship
including any and all claims and rights under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, and any personal gain with respect to any claim arising under the
qui tam provisions of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. 3730 but excluding any rights or benefits to which              is entitled under the Severance
Agreement.

(b)              agrees that [he/she] will not directly or indirectly institute any legal proceedings against Releasees before any court, administrative
agency, arbitrator or any other tribunal or forum whatsoever by reason of any claims and potential claims for relief, causes of action and liabilities of any
and every kind, nature and character whatsoever, known or unknown, arising out of, relating to or resulting from any events occurring prior to the
execution of this Release, including but not limited to any claims and potential claims for relief, causes of action and liabilities arising out of, relating to or
resulting from the employment relationship between              and SAIC and its subsidiaries, affiliates and predecessors, and/or the termination of that
relationship including any and all claims and rights under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act.

(c)              is presently unaware of any injuries that [he/she] may have suffered as a result of working at SAIC or its subsidiaries, affiliates or
predecessors, and has no present intention of filing a workers’ compensation claim. Should any such claim arise in the future,              waives and releases
any right to proceed against SAIC or its subsidiaries, affiliates or predecessors, for such a claim.              also waives any right to bring any disability claim
against SAIC or its subsidiaries, affiliates or predecessors, or its or their carriers.

4. As a material part of the consideration for this Agreement,              and [his/her] agents and attorneys, agree to keep completely confidential and not
disclose to any person or entity, except immediate family, attorney, accountant, or tax preparers, or in response to a court order or subpoena, the terms and/or
conditions of this Release and/or any understandings, agreements, provisions and/or information contained herein or with regard to the employment relationship
between              and SAIC and its subsidiaries, affiliates and predecessors.

5. Any dispute, claim or controversy of any kind or nature, including but not limited to the issue of arbitrability, arising out of or relating to this Release, or
the breach thereof, or any disputes which may arise in the future, shall be settled in a final and binding before an arbitrator appointed by the Judicial Arbitration
and Mediation Service in accordance with the rules and procedures of arbitration under the Company’s Dispute Resolution Program, attached hereto as Exhibit A.
The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and necessary disbursements incurred in connection with the arbitration
proceeding. Judgment upon the award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

6. It is further understood and agreed that              has not relied upon any advice whatsoever from SAIC and/or its attorneys individually and/or
collectively as to the taxability, whether pursuant to Federal, State or local income tax statutes or regulations, or otherwise, of the consideration transferred
hereunder and that [he/she] will be solely liable for all of [his/her] tax obligations.             
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understands and agrees that SAIC or its subsidiaries, affiliates or predecessors, may be required by law to report all or a portion of the amounts paid to [him/her]
and/or [his/her] attorney in connection with this Release to federal and state taxing authorities.              waives, releases, forever discharges and agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold SAIC harmless with respect to any actual or potential tax obligations imposed by law.

7.              acknowledges that [he/she] has read, understood and truthfully completed the Business Ethics and Conduct Disclosure Statement attached hereto
as Exhibit B.

8. It is further understood and agreed that Releasees and/or their attorneys shall not be further liable either jointly and/or severally to              and/or
[his/her] attorneys individually or collectively for costs and/or attorneys fees, including any provided for by statute, nor shall              and/or [his/her] attorneys be
liable either jointly and/or severally to SAIC and/or its attorneys individually and/or collectively for costs and/or attorneys’ fees, including any provided for by
statute.

9.              understands and agrees that if the facts with respect to which this Release are based are found hereafter to be other than or different from the
facts now believed by [him/her] to be true, [he/she] expressly accepts and assumes the risk of such possible difference in facts and agrees that this Release shall
be and remain effective notwithstanding such difference in facts.

10.              understands and agrees that there is a risk that the damage and/or injury suffered by              may become more serious than [he/she] now
expects or anticipates.              expressly accepts and assumes this risk, and agrees that this Release shall be and remains effective notwithstanding any such
misunderstanding as to the seriousness of said injuries or damage.

11.              understands and agrees that if [he/she] hereafter commences any suit arising out of, based upon or relating to any of the claims and potential
claims for relief, cause of action and liability of any and every kind, nature and character whatsoever, known or unknown, [he/she] has released herein,             
agrees to pay Releasees, and each of them, in addition to any other damages caused to Releasees thereby, all attorneys’ fees incurred by Releasees in defending or
otherwise responding to said suit.

12. It is further understood and agreed that this Release shall be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of             ’s spouse, heirs, successors, assigns,
agents, employees, representatives, executors and administrators and shall be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the individual and/or collective
successors and assigns of Releasees and their successors, assigns, agents and/or representatives.

13. This Release shall be construed in accordance with and governed for all purposes by the laws of the State of California.

14.              agrees that [he/she] will not seek future employment with, nor need to be considered for any future openings with SAIC, any division thereof,
or any subsidiary or related corporation or entity.
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15.              and Releasees waive all rights under Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which section has been fully explained to them by their
respective legal counsel and which they fully understand, and any other similar provision or the law of any other state or jurisdiction. Section 1542 provides as
follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in [his/her] favor at the time of executing the
release, which if known by [him/her] must have materially affected [his/her] settlement with the debtor.

16. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,              does not waive, release or discharge any rights to indemnification for actions
occurring through [his/her] affiliation with SAIC or its subsidiaries, affiliates or predecessors, whether those rights arise from statute, corporate charter documents
or any other source nor does              waive, release or discharge any right              may have pursuant to any insurance policy or coverage provided or maintained
by SAIC or its subsidiaries, affiliates or predecessors.

17. If any part of this Agreement is found to be either invalid or unenforceable, the remaining portions of this Agreement will still be valid.

18. This Agreement is intended to release and discharge any claims of              under the Age Discrimination and Employment Act. To satisfy the
requirements of the Older Workers’ Benefit Protection Act, 29 U.S.C. section 626(f), the parties agree as follows:
 

 A.              acknowledges that [he/she] has read and understands the terms of this Agreement.
 

 
B.              acknowledges that [he/she] has been advised in writing to consult with an attorney, if desired, concerning this Agreement and has received all

advice [he/she] deems necessary concerning this Agreement.
 

 
C.              acknowledges that [he/she] has been given twenty-one (21) days to consider whether or not to enter into this Agreement, has taken as much

of this time as necessary to consider whether to enter into this Agreement, and has chosen to enter into this Agreement freely, knowingly and
voluntarily.

 

 
D. For a seven day period following the execution of this Agreement,              may revoke this Agreement by delivering a written revocation to at SAIC.

This Agreement shall not become effective and enforceable until the revocation period has expired.

19.              acknowledges that [he/she] has been encouraged to seek the advice of an attorney of [his/her] choice with regard to this Release. Having read
the foregoing, having understood and agreed to the terms of this Release, and having had the opportunity to and having been advised by independent legal
counsel, the parties hereby voluntarily affix their signatures.

20. This Agreement is to be interpreted without regard to the draftsperson. The terms and intent of the Agreement shall be interpreted and construed on the
express assumption that all parties participated equally in its drafting.
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21. This Release constitutes a single integrated contract expressing the entire agreement of the parties hereto. Except for the Severance Agreement, which
defines certain obligations on the part of both parties, and this Release, there are no agreements, written or oral, express or implied, between the parties hereto,
concerning the subject matter herein.
 
Dated:              , 20    

 

[Signature]

 

[Print Name]

SAIC, Inc.

By:   

Name:   

Its:   
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BUSINESS ETHICS AND CONDUCT

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Are you aware of any illegal or unethical practices or conduct anywhere within SAIC, Inc. or its subsidiaries, affiliates or predecessors (“SAIC”)
(including, but not limited to, improper charging practices, or any violations of SAIC’s Standards of Business Ethics and Conduct)?
 
Yes  ☐  No  ☐

(Your answer to all questions on this form will not have any bearing on the fact or terms of your Release with SAIC.)

If the answer to the preceding question is “yes,” list here, in full and complete detail, all such practices or conduct. (Use additional pages if necessary.)
 

 

 

Have any threats or promises been made to you in connection with your answers to the questions on this form?
 
Yes  ☐  No  ☐

If “yes,” please identify them in full and complete detail. Also, notify SAIC’s General Counsel at (858) 826-7325 immediately.
 

 

 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California and of the United States, that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this          of                         , 20    , at                                         .
 
  
[Signature]



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kenneth C. Dahlberg, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ending July 31, 2008 of SAIC, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

 

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most

recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: September 3, 2008
 

/s/    KENNETH C. DAHLBERG        

Kenneth C. Dahlberg
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark W. Sopp, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ending July 31, 2008 of SAIC, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

 

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most

recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: September 3, 2008
 

/s/    MARK W. SOPP        

Mark W. Sopp
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of SAIC, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-Q for the period ending July 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Kenneth C. Dahlberg, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Date: September 3, 2008
 

/s/    KENNETH C. DAHLBERG        

Kenneth C. Dahlberg
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of SAIC, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-Q for the period ending July 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Mark W. Sopp, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Date: September 3, 2008
 

/s/    MARK W. SOPP        

Mark W. Sopp
Chief Financial Officer


